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1       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Is everything ready in

2 Springfield?

3       COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We're

4 ready to go here.

5       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.

6           Pursuant to Section 200.850 of the

7 Commission's administering the rules, we will now begin

8 oral argument before the Illinois Commerce Commission,

9 Docket No. 11-0711.  This is a Rule-making proceeding

10 developed upon rules concerning rate case expense.  In

11 Chicago are Commissioner McCabe, Acting Commissioner

12 Del Valle, and Acting Commissioner Maye.  Commissioner

13 in Springfield is Commissioner Colgan.  I am

14 Commissioner Scott.

15           As the Commission noticed to the parties we

16 have three topics for oral argument today.  First,

17 whether an internal or affiliate utility expenses

18 regarding a rate increase case are within the scope of

19 Section 9-299 of the Public Utilities Act and should be

20 included in the Rule.

21           Second, whether Section 200(b)(2) as modified,

22 which requires the utility to provide evidence

23 establishing what services the employee performed should

24 be included in the Rule and if internal utility
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1 expenditures are excluded from the Rule.

2           Third, the new standard for rate case expense

3 established by Section 9-229 and People ex rel. Madigan.

4           Oral argument was noticed for today

5 September 23rd, 2013 at 10:30 a.m. and all participants

6 should have received both a notice and a schedule for

7 today's oral argument.  As stated in the notice, in

8 addition to the top as already identified, parties

9 should be also prepared to answer any questions

10 regarding records or pertinent law.  There are eight

11 parties participating in today's argument.  Parties may

12 apply for allotted time between initial argument and

13 rebuttal.  So please let us know before you begin and

14 please reserve time for rebuttal.  The order of

15 presentation is indicated in the agenda.  We will start

16 with Ameren followed by MidAmerican, Com Ed, Nicor,

17 People's Gas and North Shore Gas, Staff of the Illinois

18 Commerce Commission, the Citizens Utility Board, and

19 Office the Attorney General.  And we will use the same

20 order for rebuttal.  We have one set of exhibits from

21 the Attorney General for today's oral argument.  Tom

22 Keifer off to my right.  On the right will be Megan

23 McNeil will be monitoring the times in Chicago.  Keep in

24 mind your time usage and we will attempt to give
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1 one-minute warning before our time has expired.  Again,

2 please let the Commission know if you wish to reserve

3 any time for rebuttal.  To keep things on schedule your

4 time allotment is inclusive of Commission questions and

5 any related answers so please be judicious with your

6 time.

7           Continuing now with oral argument.  First we

8 will hear from Matthew Tomc.

9           Mr. Tomc, you will have 20 minutes for initial

10 presentation and rebuttal.  Would you like to reserve

11 any time?

12       MR. TOMC:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  I would like to

13 reserve five minutes for rebuttal.

14       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.  Go ahead, sir.

15       MR. TOMC:  Mr. Chairman, members of the

16 Commission, first let me thank you for allowing me the

17 opportunity to share my perspective with you today on

18 this important issue.  My name is Matt Tomc.  I am here

19 on behalf of Ameren Illinois Company.  And first of all

20 I will tell that you that perspective I wish to share

21 with you is from the perspective of an in-house counsel

22 attorney.  I have been a lawyer for about ten years now.

23 In the entire career, you know, since I have graduated

24 from law school I have worked in-house.  First I worked
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1 for three years for Kansas Corporation Commission as

2 in-house representing the Kansas Staff before its

3 Commission as well as the Federal Energy Regulatory

4 Commission and then I accepted a position at Ameren with

5 their in-house legal group as a regulatory attorney.  So

6 it's with that vantage point that I look at these issues

7 and from that perspective that I offer you my arguments

8 today.

9           I work for Ameren Services Company.  Ameren

10 Services Company is a business and corporate service

11 provider, a subsidiary of Ameren Corporation, which is a

12 holding company organized under the Public Holding

13 Company Act of 2005.  Ameren Services Company provides

14 services to affiliates of Ameren Corp including Illinois

15 Ameren Company.  Those services are largely overhead

16 type of services that would include legal and other

17 professional services and functions.

18           The services that are performed by Ameren

19 Services Company, I think it's important to note, are

20 provided for by the Commission-approved general services

21 agreement.  That agreement was approved last in 2010 and

22 it also includes allocation factors that govern how

23 costs are allocated between affiliates in order to

24 ensure transparency.  It is subject to audit by the
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1 Commission during a rate proceeding or other types of

2 investigation.  It is also subject to audit by the

3 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Staff as well.

4           Most of the work that I do being on the

5 Illinois Regulatory team for Ameren Illinois Company, I

6 do work for some other affiliates; but for the most part

7 it's Ameren Illinois that I provide representation for.

8 My services that I provide as a member of my team

9 includes services related to Thera (phonetic) files,

10 reconciliations, complaint cases, pipeline safety,

11 compliance matters, contractual matters, and transaction

12 issues, supplier act issues concerning the territory of

13 Ameren Illinois as it pertains to the territory of the

14 coop.  They are all operating from the same geographic

15 areas.  I do provide counsel on law and regulation

16 providing guidance on the compliance of law and

17 regulation.  And I do work on rate cases and I also

18 represent the company in rulemaking as well.  As part of

19 my functions as well I retain, supervise, and review

20 invoices for outside counsel.  That includes outside

21 counsel services performed during the course of rate

22 cases.  I work closely with the regulatory business

23 professional that work directly for Ameren Illinois

24 Company.  And myself, like my peer professionals,
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1 accountants, and engineers that work internal to the

2 utility, my compensation is fixed.  And I am not charged

3 by the hour.  I am not billed by the hour.

4           So it is from this perspective I offer you

5 what the scope of this Rule is.  I think that's really a

6 foundational issue to be addressed today, the

7 foundational issue with regard to formulating what that

8 Rule and the policy it follows should be.

9           In my opinion, the scope of a Rule really

10 should be defined in terms of the scope of a law that it

11 tends to implement.  I have reviewed Section 9-229 as

12 interpreted by the Madigan case.  And that Rule in that

13 case did not seek to redefine what rate case expense is.

14 Therefore I argue that neither should this Rule 9-229

15 and Madigan instruct the Commission to make more

16 specific findings to support the rate case expense

17 that's allowed in a rate case.

18           Well, that begs the question, what is rate

19 case expense?  From my perspective, it's external cost

20 outside the test year necessary to administer a rate

21 case.  The Commission's rules recognize that

22 understanding co-defined in 285.3085.

23           Now, internal employee costs including

24 regulatory professionals and attorneys presumably would



9

1 be captured in a test year when you file a rate case.

2 So these test year expenses really are different from

3 those incremental expenses that occur outside of a test

4 year when you're trying to present your case for a rate

5 increase.

6           I will give you an example.  To the extent

7 that I work on a rate case in 2010, 2013 is not going to

8 be the test year.  The test year will either be a

9 historic period or a forecasted period.  That forecast,

10 of course, is derivative of historical experience plus

11 anticipated increase of costs or inflation.

12           Also I think it's important to note rate case

13 expenses are typically amortized.  Because unlike

14 internal costs they are not likely to reoccur in the

15 same amount each year so they are amortized over a

16 multiyear period, two or three years.  Therefore I do

17 have this concern that if we attempt to extricate what

18 would be internal costs from the test revenue

19 requirement, mixed those costs with external costs that

20 are subject to amortization, I do not believe we

21 satisfied the requirements of 9-229.  I actually think

22 we came across a redefinition of what rate case expense

23 is.  I think that such an attempt to do so will not

24 assist with the findings necessary to review.  The rate
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1 case that's been requested to be approved and raised,

2 but I think it will inflate the issue and make it more

3 complex and difficult to understand and articulate and

4 audit.  I think when we prepare argument information for

5 the Commission to base its decisions on, it's important

6 that information clearly convey what's being sought to

7 be requested and what's sought to be recovered and give

8 good salient information that can be used to satisfy

9 legal requirements by which we are held.

10       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Given your last point, would it

11 matter how much of the time an employee spent doing --

12 an in-house attorney spent doing rate cases?  If that's

13 all they did, would your answer be any different?  I

14 mean, you gave your own example and you are doing ten

15 different tasks for the company, one of which is rate

16 case litigation; would it be different if that's all you

17 did?

18       MR. TOMC:  That's a good question.  I think let's

19 assume for the sake of a hypothetical we do have an

20 employee and all they do is supporting rate cases in

21 Illinois.  Those costs would still be required, I think,

22 to be allocated through the GSA and they would be

23 accounted for pursuant per accounting, based on those

24 allocation factors.  For that employee, I think, to
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1 break out and send an invoice to the utility company it

2 would really be separate and apart from how those

3 allocated costs are used in the PUA.  So my answer is it

4 might be germane to the question of whether or not rate

5 cases expenses are reasonable insofar as that employee

6 has spent considerable amount of time and energy working

7 on that case.  But if the extent of rate case expense in

8 its review is a recovery of costs on top of and above

9 test year expenses, I think the answer to the question

10 is, the accounting of the presentation and information

11 should remain the same.  When you are looking at a

12 request to recover costs associated with rate case

13 expense, it's, you know -- one of the questions is how

14 many hours is that outside counsel going to be spending

15 on their efforts?  And certainly I think there would be

16 discovery to that end to, how did you formulate the

17 requirements for the hourly expectations that you

18 budgeted when you prepared your 285 schedules?  I think

19 that might give you an insight to how that process

20 worked.  Now, if you're -- there is a concern that

21 internally within ANG [sic], their legal fund, and how

22 the industry and the general expenses that are allocated

23 to services company that they may be excessive or

24 imprudent, that's subject to review as well.  I think



12

1 that's a different type of review though.  I think

2 that's a review where you look at what the service

3 company costs are and whether they are reasonable.

4           Now, I will say different companies are going

5 to be organized differently so you may have companies

6 with different levels of expertise in-house.  You will

7 have some that have high -- a high degree of expertise

8 in environmental matters.  Some may have

9 representatively more regulatory experience.  I think

10 you have to look at that function as a whole.  Are they

11 spending what they should be on the general counsel

12 functions in an appropriate proportion to other

13 utilities or are they spending too much?  I think that's

14 a question we do address in rate case expenses, but it's

15 not in the context of rate case expenses as it's

16 traditionally applied.

17       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I appreciate your answer.  Does

18 it matter at all that since Madigan and the construct

19 for you and for Edison has changed because of the nature

20 of the law that we have got essentially a rate case

21 every year, does that change the dynamic at all?

22       MR. TOMC:  It does slightly.  I think if we look

23 at the original purpose of rate case expense, we have to

24 kind of approach that with the expectation that the
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1 reason we are making that request is because those costs

2 aren't in the test year.  So it follows then if you are

3 filing a rate case every year or maybe every other year

4 where you are looking at the year in actuals and also

5 doing a lookback each year to see if what you are

6 spending in the lines of what you requested to recover;

7 and the way that process works, it follows that the rate

8 case expense issue is somewhat diminished in the sense

9 that there is no need to include things that are

10 incremental in addition to what otherwise, you know,

11 would be ordinarily recovered in a test year.  So those

12 costs will always be captured in a test year in

13 proportion to their exact amount.  There is no need to

14 look at what the total cost in addition what the revenue

15 requirement would otherwise be.  And of course there is

16 no need to amortize it because you're going to have

17 year-end actuals and you're going to do a lookback each

18 year.  Does that make sense?

19       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Mm-hmm.  Thank you.

20       MR. TOMC:  Okay.  My next point would be with

21 regard to the second question, I believe.  To the extent

22 that internal, you know, expenses are excluded from the

23 Rule, you know, what about this is consideration of

24 duplicate expenses?  My argument would be if you define
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1 the scope in terms of how you traditionally define rate

2 case expense and you interpret 9-229 to mean that what

3 the Commission is doing is essentially redefining what

4 that is but to make better findings in order to improve

5 it, I don't think the information that's called for in

6 Subsection .200(b)(2) is necessary.

7           Secondly, I don't know -- I would offer that I

8 don't know if the information that's requested would

9 really serve the ends that it's purported to.  I don't

10 know if I would really tell you if there are duplicate

11 expenses that are being provided.  In response to the

12 Chairman's question, I kind of talk about two different

13 issues.  I really think this incremental and external

14 talk that are being sought or seeking to recover as rate

15 case expense is a different type of expense than

16 internal, you know, services company or internal

17 employee expense.  The question -- If the question is,

18 is the company spending too much on business and

19 corporate service costs or too much on some subcategory

20 of that, such as general counsel function or regulatory

21 professionals, I believe that question is best addressed

22 in that context by looking at what those costs are, how

23 they compare to other utilities, how they compare to

24 previous years, and look at actual factual evidence of



15

1 how those costs are justified, why those costs occurred.

2           Now, if you are looking at, did you properly

3 budget for, supervise, manage the retention of external

4 counsel?  To me that's a separate question.  So looking

5 at the information that's called for in .200(b)(2) I

6 don't see who that gives you insight to make those two

7 types of separate views.

8           Finally, I want to it talk a little bit about

9 policy here.  I think rules do shape business

10 performance in the regulated industry, regulated

11 company.  Look at the rules how they are supposed to

12 operate going forward.  We oftentimes as lawyers apply

13 rules to facts as they have been experienced, but

14 businesses do look at the guidance that we are given and

15 they shape how we manage our business.  I think,

16 in-house lawyers and outside lawyers, I think, in-house

17 business professionals and outside expert witnesses are

18 really two different types of employees.  In-house

19 counsel perspective, we don't charge by the hour.  We

20 don't bill by the hour.  We don't send invoices to our

21 clients.  We don't charge fees for our clients.  We are

22 salaried employees.  We have fixed compensation.  We are

23 not compensated with overtime, at least at Ameren.  I

24 think we play an important role but a different role
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1 than outside counsel provides.  I think to the extent

2 that we try to make outside counsel the same in the way

3 we treat them in rates, I think we might actually shape

4 some policy that it potentially could present some

5 complications for each presenting rate case expense.  If

6 you are going to try to make in-house lawyers just like

7 outside lawyers, why not hire an outside lawyers because

8 they have those separate fees?

9           When companies are looking to Staff rate

10 cases, I don't think we want to diminish the in-house

11 counsel.  Because in-house counsel can provide that

12 insight that outside counsel might take them more time

13 to understand the information they are wanting to

14 present.  I think there has to be some sort of balance.

15 I think that's really important.  At the end of the day

16 I think it would serve the interest of this Rule or the

17 underlying policy if we promote the retention of outside

18 lawyers and the minimized role of inside lawyers.  They

19 both, in my opinion, would raise rate case expense.

20       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I am confused a little bit

21 because I agree with you that's not really our role to

22 decide whether a company should use inside or outside

23 lawyers, but they are going to make that decision based

24 on what they think is best based on their company.
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1 Whatever cost determinations they can make inside versus

2 outside and having somebody like you who does ten

3 different things instead of hiring a separate person to

4 do all those tasks separately, I'm not sure we are

5 talking about the accounting for it more than we are

6 what is going to hire who; right?

7       MR. TOMC:  I think I agree with you.  One of the

8 considerations that companies like Ameren Illinois would

9 make in having to Staff a rate case or any other

10 business function is recoverability, you know, of those

11 services.  I am a little bit concerned.  Obviously I'm

12 trying to look forward and see how this Rule will be

13 interpreted.  I think to the extent we attempt to

14 require in-house lawyers or in-house experts to try to

15 submit invoices or mock-up invoices as though they were

16 outside professionals, I believe that might be -- that

17 might complicate the staffing of rate cases.  It also

18 may complicate the ability to competently calculate that

19 number in a manner that's not subjective and be able to

20 respond to an audit.  I think there might be overtime --

21 depending how the Rule is interpreted, there might be a

22 situation where the path to recoverability of costs

23 incurred is complicated.  And if the most transparent

24 way to do that is to simply go externally, because then
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1 you have external invoice, the contract provided for the

2 services, and they bill by the hour, and that's part of

3 their business function, my concern would be this policy

4 would promote that.  At the end of the day, we would

5 hire outside lawyers and minimize too much for internal

6 lawyers and rate case expense goes up.

7       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Unless you just added that

8 paperwork function to your in-house lawyers like lots of

9 people already do.

10       MR. TOMC:  We do.  We do obviously -- That's a

11 good point, Mr. Chairman.  We do obviously keep track of

12 our time.  It's for the purpose of administering the

13 GSA.  It's not for the purpose of generating billable

14 hour invoices.

15       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I understand.

16       MR. TOMC:  We are accountable to our clients.  And

17 certainly if at any time the Commission wants to

18 understand how much you are spending on in-house

19 resources, whether it's in-house counsel or other

20 expertise, that matter is subject to audit and we have

21 to respond to the data request.  Certainly in a rate

22 case we have to justify our expenses.  I just think the

23 PCNS costs that are allocated from the services company

24 are incurred internally, are really just a different
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1 type of cost for an outside counsel.  I think I am a

2 little bit concerned that if we try to mix those two, I

3 think it's kind of apples and oranges in comparison.

4       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  How much time do we have?

5       MS. McNEIL:  1:48.

6       MR. TOMC:  1:48.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

7       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Next we hear from Jennifer Moore

8 representing MidAmerican.

9           Good morning.

10       MS. MOORE:  Good morning, Chairman.

11       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  You have 20 minutes.  Would you

12 like to reserve?

13       MS. MOORE:  Yes.  We can go 8 to 10 depending on

14 the number of questions.

15           Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, good morning.  I

16 am Jennifer Moore representing MidAmerican Energy

17 Company.  MidAmerican appreciates the opportunity to

18 press these issues with you today.  Just like Mr. Tomc I

19 am also an in-house counsel with MidAmerican and so if

20 you have specific questions about the operation of the

21 company just let me know and feel free to interrupt.  As

22 you are aware, you have outlined the three issues but I

23 would like to take them out of order and begin with the

24 third issue about the standard of the rate case expenses
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1 established by Section 9-229 in the Madigan decision.

2           Now, MidAmerican is in agreement with the

3 proposed order decision or the declaration that the goal

4 here is to provide methodology for documentation that

5 the expenses incurred in a rate case are just and

6 reasonable.  Section 229 of the Public Utility Act

7 requires the Commission to expressly assess the justness

8 and the reasonableness of those expenses pertaining to

9 attorneys or technical experts in the Commission's rate

10 order.  The proposed order however loses focus of that

11 goal by imposing a heightened sense of scrutiny that the

12 Commission isn't bound to use or follow.

13           And we -- I guess, coming from the MidAmerican

14 perspective I would urge the Commission to re shift the

15 goal back to the methodology used to determine the

16 justness and reasonableness of those rate case expenses.

17 Because when you're looking at that, you are looking at

18 the justness and the reasonableness of all costs that

19 are incurred in the rate case, not just one component.

20 A rate case expense is just one component of that

21 overall revenue requirement.  It -- when you just pull

22 one out, you kind of lose what you are doing.  The

23 Public Utility Act itself doesn't place a higher sense

24 of scrutiny on one cost component versus the other.  So
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1 in devising the rules, I think it is important to focus

2 on what that is.  More importantly when you look at the

3 Madigan decision and read it, the point there was that

4 in the Commission's order it should be expressly stated

5 what the Commission reviewed and determined in relation

6 to those rate case expenses.  It didn't say you have got

7 to look at these with a heightened sense of scrutiny.

8           Again, the proposed order when you're looking

9 at it, it takes it a step farther.  It says that Madigan

10 requires you to apply all these specific aspects to it

11 when really you are only supposed to use the other cases

12 as guidance for what the Commission can look at.  I

13 guess the difficulty in the way the rest of the order

14 flows in some of those sections that we will be

15 discussing today is what exactly that you do with that

16 and what are we supposed to provide and how is the

17 Commission supposed to do that and balance it with other

18 aspects of, you know, your rate case elements and what

19 you're supposed to provide and how you are going to

20 determine that?

21           So, you know, getting beyond the scope of the

22 order, I mean, I think it needs to be kind of revised so

23 that we can get back to that you are looking at the

24 inclusion that this is just guidance and it's not a
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1 matter and you need flexible rules to do that.  So with

2 that in mind, you know, whether internal affiliate

3 utility cost regarding rate cases are within the scope

4 of 229 and consistent with Madigan, I'm just going to

5 state up front that at this time MidAmerican has never

6 requested internal expenses and included those in rate

7 case expenses.  But the order the way it's written, it

8 closes the door.  I think that that needs to be looked

9 at so that going forward -- I'm not sure what the basis,

10 that there is a basis for to you do that.  I think our

11 position would simply be at this time we haven't done

12 that.  But in looking at it, the Madigan decision didn't

13 close the door on the Commission on internal rate case

14 expense nor did the Commission consider that in other

15 cases post the Madigan case.  So the Commission

16 generally has considered these internal costs and I

17 think that the rules should be written in a manner where

18 you are still allowed to have that flexibility to do so.

19 Whether you do it or not is going to depend on the case

20 and be on a case-by-case basis.

21           I don't know that -- Well, do I know

22 MidAmerican doesn't have a strong preference in whether

23 you do that to restore staff's proposed language or

24 simply either delete it from the Rule or state that this
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1 Rule isn't intended to preclude the Commission from

2 considering these costs.  And then finally for the last

3 issue and going back to the scope is whether the new

4 Section, which requires the utility to provide evidence

5 in establishing what services the employee performed

6 should be included in the Rule if internal utility

7 expenses are excluded from the Rule.  These kind of go

8 to one another.  So if you are going to exclude internal

9 utility services from the Rule, then what's the

10 motivation in making the utility track it?  That's one

11 point.  But if you are going to go ahead and not address

12 it, then the difficulty with this Rule is -- and I'm not

13 sure how you are supposed to comply with it -- it's a

14 new provision that requires all utility employees who

15 are working on the rate case to track it.  And from a

16 practical perspective not even beginning, you know, with

17 the legal one, I'm not sure how MidAmerican can comply

18 with that.  I don't know how probative it would be for

19 the Commission, for you to know how many hours each

20 utility down from an administrative assistant to the

21 vice president to the attorneys for various reasons.

22 One, most practically, we don't track it to the detail

23 so you would know how many hours I have worked on a rate

24 case.  So you would know that I did 140 hours, but how
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1 are you supposed to compare that and make sure it's not

2 duplicative of any work that outside counsel has done?

3 What is the metric here?  I mean, I'm not following it.

4 If you get into the detail of what goes into that work

5 and you are comparing it, well, then you really have to

6 get buried down into, I guess, the weeds to compare what

7 I'm doing to what outside counsel may be doing.  Then

8 when you open those flood gates, I'm not sure that

9 you -- That's attorney-client work product on what we

10 have decided with what's going to go into it.  What we

11 do with all employees is, you know, you -- if you drill

12 down to that detail and want to know what specific part

13 of the rate case they were looking at, again, is it

14 relevant they were looking at one adjustment,

15 performance adjustment, but one with another one?

16 Again, that's what I am concerned with in this one.

17       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  How are we supposed to judge what

18 even the reasonableness, how are we supposed to judge

19 what's reasonable if we don't know if all we get is a

20 set that says we have attorneys that worked so how many

21 hours?  Or even if we have 20 employees who did a total

22 of a thousand hours on this particular case, how are we

23 supposed to know whether that was a reasonable expense

24 or not if we don't delve into it or don't have the
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1 ability to delve into it?

2       MS. MOORE:  Well, there is a couple things there.

3 Why would it be probative on the amount of hours?  I

4 mean, the Rule as it's written it just wants us to track

5 it for you.  It doesn't say how to track it.  It doesn't

6 say to what detail.  Then it doesn't say what you're

7 going to compare it to.  So the first problem is with

8 the way that the Rule is written.  It's so ambiguous

9 that I'm not sure what exactly we are supposed to

10 providing.  Second of all, following a historical test

11 year, the labor expenses are already built into that

12 ONM.  It would be built in and it probably isn't even

13 reflective because it's a post -- or historical test

14 year and in most cases we haven't filed a future one.

15 But it would calculate the historical labor costs and

16 allocate those over to the Illinois jurisdiction.  And

17 that's not going to tell you what and who worked on the

18 rate case because that usually comes -- that's the year

19 prior and then the rate case work actually begins the

20 following year when you are preparing it.

21           But it goes back to -- if you look at the Rule

22 down below in Subsection 4 there is an explanation of

23 the process and the procedures and control.  You are

24 going to have to look at that and get out of the woods
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1 and into the weeds so you can see the big picture.  The

2 big picture would be that if MidAmerican had outside

3 attorney or technical experts, did we have the inside

4 knowledge on that?  And it may be, for example, our last

5 rate case we didn't have any outside attorney fees.

6 That doesn't mean in the future -- it's been a long time

7 since we have come in for a rate case, especially

8 electric one, and the rules have changed.  And nobody,

9 you know, in-house at that time, you know, would be

10 around to know how the new ones have been implemented.

11 And we may have to supplement that.  And it's reasonable

12 to supplement that.  Now, is it necessary to do so?  I

13 don't know.  Somebody could do research.  But if you

14 want to keep your Staff at certain level, there is only

15 so many hours in the day when you've things to do.  In

16 getting to that, our system now, it only lets me record

17 80 hours.  So it doesn't matter that I might have worked

18 90 or 120.  It's only going to show you -- then how I

19 have allocated my time, it may not capture that too

20 because there is -- you know, just like, what do you

21 remember?  And it may not capture all the rate case time

22 because there is plenty of hours.  You want to be fair

23 about that so the different business units aren't too

24 upset with you about charging too much time to them.  I
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1 mean, you have to balance it all out.  So I'm not sure

2 there is an easy solution to that.  But I think what you

3 need to look at is the overall and the big picture of it

4 all and what the general policy is and what the utility

5 has in place and how they have managed that and how they

6 have pulled things in.  Did they do a lot of the work

7 that they could have done, the filing and the review

8 in-house?  Or if they didn't, did they not have the

9 sufficient amount of Staff?  Was it during the rate case

10 that perhaps they lost a position, somebody retired and

11 they haven't filled the position yet so they brought

12 somebody in to supplement that?  Is it because -- you

13 know, thinking down the line five to ten years there is

14 a lot of institutional knowledge there that's going to

15 be retiring.  So maybe at one point it will be the

16 strategy is going to be you are going to file a rate

17 case every five years.  You don't need a cost of service

18 person anymore.  And it would be easier to just get that

19 equal amount, amortize it, and build it into your rate

20 base.  So there is different factors from year to year

21 that could change.  Maybe then, you know, look ahead in

22 your forecasted plan that you have looked at it and it

23 looks like there is going to be revenue deficiencies

24 that may turn and then you are going to have rate cases
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1 every three years.  You are going to have to adjust your

2 labor for that and go out and supplement it.

3           I think those are the more pertinent issues

4 that's going to help you drive it.  Again, I think it is

5 hard to decide, was it necessary that somebody worked on

6 the testimony for ten hours versus 12 hours?  You know,

7 I don't know.  Internally they may have done that.  And

8 then for the area that they needed to supplement certain

9 research then they maybe farmed it out to the experts.

10 I think that that's your key is looking at -- what is it

11 -- that .200 Section, that Section 4 so the process, the

12 procedures, and the control that the utility has in

13 place is really what's going to give you the answer

14 there.  Again, because each case is going to be

15 different and you are comparing apples to oranges.

16       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  I have a question.  You said

17 that you're in-house counsel, correct?

18       MS. MOORE:  Correct.

19       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  So do you approve bills that

20 are sent by outside counsel?

21       MS. MOORE:  Yes.  Well, let me clarify.  Each

22 in-house attorney if they are working directly with that

23 person, then yes, they approve the bill.

24       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  Right.
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1       MS. MOORE:  So yes, I am the one who has to answer

2 to my boss if there's certain hours and I am going

3 through to make sure those charges are compatible with

4 our outside counsel.

5       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  So although you don't really

6 have necessarily a statute, do you have a manual in

7 place, which would somewhat tell you whether those bills

8 you received are for things that are just and

9 reasonable?  So if you are looking at a bill, say it's

10 from -- I worked at a law firm for five years where

11 every Tuesday I had to bill my time and would submit my

12 bills and they would get sent back to the partners if

13 they felt they were not just and reasonable tasks.  So

14 isn't that you would you do to write things off?

15       MS. MOORE:  Yes.

16       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  So are you saying that it's

17 not appropriate for the Commission to somewhat do the

18 same thing?

19       MS. MOORE:  But how are you going to know

20 whether -- that's just it.  I mean, you are not managing

21 the case on a day to day --

22       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  So you are saying we wouldn't

23 know whether it was appropriate to spend ten hours on

24 testimony or whether or not it was appropriate to spend
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1 four hours on a certain amount of research; is that what

2 you are saying?

3       MS. MOORE:  Well, in the context though.  But are

4 you managing the -- that's the difficulty.  I don't want

5 to say that it's not appropriate for the Commission to

6 look at that; but at the same time, you don't -- the

7 Commission isn't putting the case forward.  So the

8 Commission -- it isn't the Commission's case to manage.

9 And so while they may have been looking at ten, you

10 know, hours worth of testimony but some of that

11 testimony is -- was very -- depending on who was

12 assigned what -- and again we -- I don't have

13 necessarily experience in the rate case portion, but

14 there are several types of iterations of the testimony

15 that go through so it may be that it's reasonable.  But

16 when the Commission is looking at it, because we know

17 internally that, well, the way that it was written

18 before we were going to take the one position and then

19 now that it's gone through the iterations and there's

20 been several meetings, management has decided to take

21 the issues to a different perspective so it caused the

22 testimony to be rewritten again.  Now, do I want to tell

23 anyone in the case that I am litigating that I have

24 changed positions?  Again, that's a work product issue.
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1 So it becomes difficult because it's not -- again,

2 how -- not knowing that and not knowing what our

3 position was going in, what we modified, what we

4 changed, what we researched, and decided to change

5 again, I'm not sure that you --

6       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  So you wouldn't be able to

7 justify why you had so many iterations because you deem

8 that work product.

9       MS. MOORE:  Correct.  And so it needs to be done

10 at a high level because otherwise we are tipping our

11 hand.  Then it gets back to, am I litigating a rate case

12 here or are you litigating how I am managing a rate

13 case?  That's what we want.  And again, this hasn't been

14 an issue in our past rate cases.  It could be.  That's

15 why we want to make it certain here is that you don't

16 want to -- you got to maintain that balance.  You don't

17 want to get over and decide are you in the position, you

18 know, to be able to manage that and see the day-to-day

19 issue?

20       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  Right.  I do understand your

21 point.  I just also know that sometimes I think there is

22 duplicative work, you know, at law firms and between

23 in-house and outside counsel.  And so there needs to

24 be -- I know it's a fine line between us being able to
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1 monitor that or supervise it or to deem that that work

2 is actually just and reasonable and you all being able

3 to maintain that privacy or work product.

4       MS. MOORE:  Yes.  The problem in my mind with the

5 Rule is it doesn't define what is duplicative.  In my

6 mind, there is a lot of maybe duplicative work.  Is it

7 if it's going through several iterations of review?  So

8 if I have my regulatory relations who are experts on the

9 tariffs, review the tariff testimony of it, and I review

10 it too, we are all looking at different things; but then

11 you can consider that duplicative but then it's not.

12 It's collaborative.  That's the difficulty with the Rule

13 and the ambiguity in it.  It doesn't define what is

14 duplicative and what is collaborative.  How do you make

15 that -- it's a judgment call kind of thing.  And so it

16 is a hard situation and I -- because in looking to my

17 proposed order I see the perspective from the ALJ trying

18 to get this information to kind of do that and, you

19 know, it is a hard act for you to balance.  But in doing

20 so, you got to be clear about what those rules are and

21 what we have to provide.  Again, I don't know that

22 providing, you know, the total hours of the utility work

23 on it compared to what the outside technical may be

24 probative.
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1       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  How much time do we have left?

2       MS. MOORE:  Any further questions?  I reserved

3 extra time too.  So if there are any specific issues,

4 but, you know, obviously we would like a little revision

5 especially on that last just one to make it a little

6 clearer or to focus on that Section 4.  Thank you.

7       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you, Ms. Moore.

8       MS. McNEIL:  2:22.

9       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.  Next up is

10 Commonwealth Edison represented by Ronit Barrett.

11 Ms. Barrett, you have 20 minutes.  Would you like to

12 reserve time?

13       MS. BARRETT:  I would like to reserve 13 minutes

14 for rebuttal, please.

15       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Go ahead.

16       MS. BARRETT:  Good morning.  I am Ronit Barrett on

17 behalf of Com Ed.  The key point that I hope the

18 Commission takes away from today is that there is no new

19 substantive standard for rate case expense recovery.

20 The Public Utilities Act, the Commission, and the Courts

21 have applied just and reasonable, that standard for

22 decades and 9-229 does not change that just and

23 reasonable standard.  But the draft rule, which is just

24 supposed to apply 9-229, does go beyond that standard.
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1 I think the question we need to ask is, what does 9-229

2 and the Madigan case require?  9-229 just requires that

3 the Commission make a specific finding.  All Madigan

4 says is that in order to make that specific finding you

5 have to actually look at the evidence.

6           So let me be even more plain.  Madigan says

7 look at the evidence and then write about it in your

8 order.  Then Madigan points the Commission towards what

9 that evidence should be that you should write about.

10 And it lays out four factors:  A description of the

11 services performed, by who they were performed, the time

12 expended, and the rate charged.  That's it.  That's what

13 you need to look at and that's what you need to base

14 your finding on.

15           Madigan also says if you want, Commission, you

16 can look at the scale of the attorneys, the difficulty

17 of the case, all these other things, but you don't have

18 to.  I think the Madigan Court knew what it was doing

19 because it allowed you the flexibility to look at this

20 on a case-by-case basis.  You don't have to go down a

21 checklist of evidence that was supplied and specific

22 things, just those four factors.  And it's also

23 important to keep in mind that in the Madigan case all

24 the Commission reviewed were a few high-level schedules,
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1 just spreadsheets with numbers on them.  Those schedules

2 did not inform the Commission about the four factors.

3 The Madigan Court just wanted a little more detail.  In

4 Madigan there was no analysis and that was the problem.

5 But Madigan did not require or even suggest the level of

6 detail that the draft rule contemplates.  We are all

7 human.  When someone tells us we did something wrong, we

8 want to show everyone we can do it better.  We want to

9 fix it.  And that's what is happening here, but the

10 draft rule is going overboard.

11           The order in the Madigan case was 20

12 single-space pages detailing the rate case expense.  The

13 Commission does not need to do that in every case.  The

14 draft rule requires an unprecedented level of

15 necessary -- proving necessary actions and proving non

16 duplication and schedules of payroll taxes for items

17 that aren't even in rate case expense.  That draft rule

18 will impose a huge burden on all the parties, on

19 utilities, on Staff, and the Commission.  That's going

20 to translate into higher costs.

21           It also seems like some of the parties may be

22 using this rulemaking process to disallow expenses that

23 everyone knows have been incurred by setting these

24 almost insurmountable evidentiary standards.  The very
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1 people that are fighting about this are some of the

2 people that caused us to incur these costs by responding

3 to 20 sets of data requests or data requests with

4 multiple subparts and responding to motions.  That's

5 okay.  That's good.  That's the system that's been put

6 in place to protect customers, but then everyone's

7 pretending there is no way for to you know if those

8 expenses incurred in responding to that were reasonable

9 unless the utility provides a mountain of evidence.

10           Madigan and 9-229 do not require you to check

11 your common sense at the door.  You have experience

12 being at the Commission.  You may have experience at law

13 firms and you can use that real world common sense and

14 judgment.  You can listen to us argue and know that what

15 we did here is reasonable.  I think the draft rule

16 requires time sheets or time descriptions.  You can look

17 at those, but you don't -- you don't need to check

18 against to make sure that nothing was duplicated.  No

19 other expense requires that standard.  You don't need to

20 make sure that everything that was done was absolutely

21 necessary and you are really not permitted to do that

22 kind of a hindsight analysis.  The question is, was it

23 just and reasonable?  Did you look at the evidence?  Did

24 you make that analysis?  I can reserve the rest for
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1 rebuttal unless --

2       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Well, let me just ask from a

3 policy standpoint.  So in a private firm case

4 theoretically, if there is a question over the bills

5 that get submitted, I would assume that the attorneys

6 sit down with the client and go over all the things that

7 have been done?  I mean, I would assume that would be

8 natural in a law firm.  Services were provided.  Here we

9 don't have that ability to do that unless we do it.

10 That's our role here and our role not just to do it if

11 we think there is an issue but to do it in every case,

12 right?  So the question becomes what level of detail is

13 necessary for us to be able to do that?  How do we find

14 something isn't duplicative unless we have enough

15 information to know what services people were providing

16 in some level of detail?  Not, you know -- I don't need

17 to know and I certainly -- I appreciate the points that

18 were just made about, you know, work product and client

19 privilege and things like that.  But could you go into

20 that a little bit?

21       MS. BARRETT:  Sure.  First of all, I think asking

22 whether something is non duplicative is the wrong

23 question.  You are supposed to ask, was it just and

24 reasonable?  And so, you know, when a utility bills a
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1 substation or something else, nobody goes through and

2 makes sure that two plumbers didn't do something on one

3 day that might have been duplicative.  You just look

4 overall, was it just and reasonable?  So I think we are

5 getting hung up on it's non duplicative.  That's not --

6 certainly if you see something that is clearly

7 duplicative in this time entry you could disallow that.

8 And hopefully the Staff and AG, they are looking out for

9 that too and so they could bring it to your attention.

10 But that's -- Non duplicative is the wrong question.

11           Then the level of detail, I think the way the

12 draft rule -- at one point it does require either time

13 sheets or some kind of time descriptions because

14 sometimes there is flat fees and the invoices or the

15 time sheets don't look the same as they would otherwise.

16 It generally requires the utilities to turn over time --

17 some kind of timekeeping that has a level of detail that

18 you could look at.  First, I would think that you would

19 want to rely on what Staff and the AG and CUB looked at.

20 But you should also look at those invoices too and they

21 would be submitted into evidence and you could look at

22 them yourself and come to your own conclusion about that

23 and write about it in the order.  I think that's all

24 that you have to do under 9-229 and Madigan.
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1       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So if the evidence were such that

2 we have seen in cases before where we just had a very

3 vague description of 500 hours by this employee or these

4 ten employees, lists of time that were spent on a rate

5 case with no other description of it, then you are

6 saying that the way that Madigan now and the Rule

7 doesn't need to go into -- to require more things to

8 allow us to say that's not enough evidence.

9       MS. BARRETT:  Yeah.  And I think what you may be

10 thinking and what comes to my mind is not so much

11 attorney invoices but expert invoices.  The way I have

12 seen them in the past, they don't list out their time in

13 detail and dates.  That's going to have to change a

14 little bit.  Yet you -- I guess, is your question if you

15 just had an invoice for 500 hours with no description,

16 you would not find that just and reasonable?

17       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  You are reading Madigan would

18 allow us to do that.

19       MS. BARRETT:  I think so, yes.

20       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

21           Anything?

22       MS. McNEIL:  11 and a half.

23       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Now we hear from Anne Mitchell

24 with Nicor.
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1       MS. MITCHELL:  Good morning, Chairman and

2 Commissioners.  Thank you for the opportunity to speak

3 with you today.  I plan to reserve about 15 minutes for

4 rebuttal in large part because many of the positions of

5 Nicor Gas Company, whom I represent, echo the comments

6 made so far by my colleagues.  In echoing Ms. Barrett,

7 her point about the substantive standard here,

8 Section 9-229 and Madigan do not change the substantive

9 standard that the Commission should apply starting back

10 in the DuPage case in 1971.  The Court said that rate

11 case expenses were properly and ordinarily recoverable

12 as the cost of doing business.  They fall under the

13 umbrella of the just and reasonable standard similar to

14 all the other expenses that the Commission had in the

15 9201 proceeding.  The concern that we have is that the

16 proposed order goes too far in saying that 9-229 and

17 Madigan somehow apply a different standard or a new

18 standard, that heightened scrutiny should be given by

19 the Commission.  Instead Madigan simply says that 9-229

20 requires express findings be made and those findings

21 need to be set forth in the Commission's order.  That

22 was the purpose of that in the Madigan case.

23           One of the topics there's been some discussion

24 on in response to questions is the nature or the notion
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1 of duplicative billing.  I believe it's the case that

2 the proposed order, it really looks at that question

3 about duplication and requiring that internal expenses

4 be tracked even though internal expenses are not going

5 to be recoverable as rate case expense.  So the proposed

6 order says internal expenses not recoverable as rate

7 case expense, but nevertheless the utility internal

8 employees should still track their time so there could

9 be a determination about whether or not there is

10 duplication between internal or external counsel.  It's

11 our position that that is a wholly unnecessary effort.

12 Because as a practical matter there is not duplication,

13 as I think Ms. Moore called it, it's more collaboration.

14 There would be no standard by which you could look at

15 the descriptions of time and be able to tell whether or

16 not it was truly duplication; because in every aspect of

17 the rate case, the internal folks are working very

18 closely with outside counsel.  So for example, you know,

19 a piece of testimony might be reviewed for different

20 aspects from internal perspective and outside

21 perspective.  The same would be true for responding to

22 data requests for example.  And in requiring the

23 internal folks to do that sort of internal tracking in

24 addition to just actually doing the work on the rate
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1 case would impose a burden and that would interfere with

2 efficient conduct of the case and it wouldn't really

3 produce any useful information.  So it's Nicor's

4 position that that Section .200(b)(3) should not be

5 included in the Rule on the related discussion about the

6 need for such an analysis should also be removed from

7 the order.

8           With that, I will reserve the remainder of my

9 time for rebuttal unless there are any questions.

10       MS. McNEIL:  16:06.

11       MS. MITCHELL:  Thank you.

12       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thanks, Ms. Mitchell.  Next we

13 will hear from Theodore Eidukas representing Peoples Gas

14 and North Shore Gas Company.  How do you pronounce your

15 last name?

16       MR. EIDUKAS:  Sure.  Eidukas.

17       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.  You will have

18 20 minutes.  Would you like to reserve any time?

19       MR. EIDUKAS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  I would like to

20 reserve eight minutes and we will see how questioning

21 goes.

22       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you, sir.  Go right ahead.

23       MR. EIDUKAS:  Thank you, Chairman and

24 Commissioners, for letting us address you this morning



43

1 and talk about this rulemaking.  I feel like I'm in the

2 position where I don't want to bore you.  I don't want

3 to repeat -- speaking of duplication I am concerned I

4 might be duplicating what my colleagues have said.  I

5 will try to work around my outline and not do that or at

6 least approach things from a different angle than

7 colleagues have done.

8           I think we all agree all the parties have been

9 involved in this proceeding agree that the proposed

10 order reflects nothing but diligence and concern to come

11 up with an order that's going to address a problem that

12 was identified -- has been identified by the Commission

13 in several orders previous and back to the General

14 Assembly in Section 9-229.  A lot of work was done by

15 the ALJ proposed order.  And that flowed from a lot of

16 work done by all the parties to this proceeding that

17 cooperated, worked together, and frankly reached a level

18 of, you know, agreement and conciliation you don't

19 always find with the parties that are involved here.

20 Nevertheless there was a lot of work done in reaching

21 some agreement on a Rule that could help the Commission

22 do what Section 9-229 asks and instructs to you do.

23 What that is is what the other attorneys have said.

24 It's you must specifically assess the justness and
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1 reasonableness of attorney and expert expenses that are

2 the utilities seeking to recover as rate case expense.

3 Not only must you specifically make that determination

4 but you must specifically expressly discuss that in your

5 final order.  So when the other attorneys have said

6 there is no new standard, they are correct.  There is no

7 new substantive standard for determining whether or not

8 a rate case is recoverable.  It's still just and

9 reasonableness like any other expense you determine for

10 a utility seeking a rate increase.  What's different now

11 is that you must make a specific determination and you

12 must make specific findings and discuss those in your

13 order.  That's what Madigan said.  It looked at what was

14 done in the Illinois American Water Company rate case.

15 It says, well, here we don't find any discussion.  You

16 know, maybe the Commission made an assessment but we

17 can't tell from the order.  Go back.  Discuss this.

18 Tell us why you found these expenses to be just and

19 reasonable.  And by the way, here is some guidance as to

20 what you might want to look at in making that

21 determination.  Kind of the who, how, when, why, and in

22 this case, how much is being charged by these attorneys

23 and experts that are seeking to recover as rate case

24 expense.
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1           But where the proposed order, in our opinion,

2 went wrong is by looking at the Madigan case and saying,

3 well, it went beyond providing guidance as to how the

4 Commission should make that determination.  And

5 moreover, the Madigan case not only is binding the

6 Commission to say how it should make that determination,

7 but it was telling the Commission what can or cannot be

8 rate case expense.  And if you look at Section 9-229's

9 language and the Madigan decision, there is nothing in

10 those -- the language of the statute or the opinion that

11 talks about how the Commission should make the

12 determination of justness or reasonableness nor is there

13 any mention as to what could or could not be rate case

14 expenses.  So in that, there was no change, no change in

15 that standard.

16       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Let me ask you a question:  Using

17 what you have just said there, there was nothing in

18 there also that prohibited us from using any particular

19 pieces of evidence, was there?  I mean, this is all

20 about a rule determination to decide how to implement a

21 statute as interpreted by a case.  And the question

22 becomes what we are looking for to try to do that.

23 Where do you find the limitation that says that we

24 couldn't do what's in a proposed order, from a case law
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1 standpoint or from a Madigan decision or even the

2 language of 9-229?

3       MR. EIDUKAS:  I would say you are right.  You are

4 just making a rule.  There is nothing prohibiting you

5 from coming up with a rule that or changing the

6 standards to say, well, now -- for example, an issue

7 that's near and dear to my clients in this case is

8 internal and affiliate rate costs.  You know, the

9 Commission has up till now allowed those to be

10 recovered.  The proposed order acknowledges that.  But

11 the problem would be is if the proposed order goes wrong

12 and what you what would need to do as the Commission to

13 make that change is to provide a reasonable basis for

14 changing a practice and policy that has existed for many

15 years.  And then to kind of turn it on its head and go

16 180 degrees the other way, there would need to be a

17 reasonable basis for doing so.  And with respect to

18 internal and affiliate costs being charged rate case

19 expense, what the proposed order says is the reason you

20 can't recover that is because the Madigan decision is

21 saying you have to follow this binding precedent that

22 prohibits that.  Well, in that case, there would be

23 several problems.  First, the Madigan case didn't say

24 that you now need to follow this binding precedent and
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1 file civil litigation fee-shifting procedures to apply

2 to rate case expense.  And only the things are

3 recoverable in civil litigation fee-shifting cases are

4 the now allowed to be recovered as rate case expense in

5 a Commission proceeding.  Further, even if it did -- we

6 decided this in briefs previously.  I can point you to

7 the citation.  There are cases in Federal and State

8 Courts where in-house counsel's costs are recovered in

9 civil fee-shifting litigation.  So the order was wrong,

10 if that was a basis for changing the rule, well, the

11 basis of the order is wrong.  They do allow for that in

12 civil fee-shifting cases.  Furthermore, the policy why

13 you might want to change the rule is while utilities

14 don't have these invoices to recover their internal or

15 affiliate costs, well, that's also been corrected for

16 utilities who do seek to recover internal and affiliate

17 costs as rate case expenses.  I do want to make clear

18 our position is not that a utility must put its internal

19 and affiliate expenses as rate case expenses.  Companies

20 like MidAmerican and Ameren don't seek recovery that

21 way, but other utility such as North Shore and Peoples

22 Gas do.  And because they have elected to seek that type

23 of recovery North Shore and Peoples Gas has undertaken

24 the burden of tracking and presenting that type of
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1 evidence in its rate case.  For example in our last rate

2 case, Docket 12-0511 and -0512 we produced hundreds of

3 pages of invoices in tracking information for what --

4 and it wasn't internal, it was an affiliate service

5 company -- employees did with respect to their work

6 specifically on that rate case.  And the charges from

7 that service company to the utilities were above and

8 beyond what they otherwise were charging the utility,

9 what would be in the normal ONM, the type of material

10 that Mr. Tomc was talking about earlier.

11           So the proposed order's reasoning for making

12 that rule change, that reasonably would be incorrect.

13 So what you are left with in the proposed order in terms

14 of affiliate rate case expense is there is nothing there

15 to support that kind of rate change.  Why would you want

16 to change years of prior practice and procedure?  If the

17 Commissioner Chairman was not appropriate for that kind

18 of recovery, I would submit that there is just not the

19 record or the reasoning here in this proposed order.

20           But turning on it, I think, perhaps, Chairman,

21 what you were looking at was the kind of tracking --

22 whether or not you are seeking rate case recovery but

23 the tracking of the internal cost to present

24 duplication, you know, I kind of feel like I have the
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1 wrong utility to address this.  Because for North Shore

2 and Peoples Gas, you know, we have the system -- they

3 have the system set up to track what the employees do.

4 They keep track of hours, their internal costs, all the

5 type of information that would allow this type of

6 analysis that you were referring to in some of your

7 earlier questions.

8       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  You are in the right place to

9 talk about that.

10       MR. EIDUKAS:  Only to the extent that if you are a

11 utility that doesn't already do this, we can tell you

12 today that the burden and the cost of setting that up

13 was significant because we wanted to make that election

14 to do it this way.  There was a lot of work and effort

15 going into doing this.  The economy systems were there.

16 It just needed to be tweaked to be allowed to track it

17 this way.  If your utility that has never thought about

18 doing this or isn't set up to do it this way, it would

19 be a substantial burden to do that.  You would have to

20 totally change your accounting system or implement a new

21 one to track this.  And we would submit that the benefit

22 to doing so doesn't substantiate undertaking that type

23 of cost if you are not going to seek recovery of your

24 rate case expense like other utilities do like North
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1 Shore and Peoples Gas.  And you were talking about

2 trying to determine that justness and reasonableness,

3 which is the standard.  And as Ms. Barrett said, you get

4 the standard.  It's not duplication.  It's just and

5 reasonableness.  So you are trying to reach that

6 standard, but you can go about it two ways.  You know,

7 the Rule would have you say let's look at what the

8 internal people are doing.  And then we will see, well,

9 is there duplication and is it just and reasonable?

10 What the other provisions or the Rule already do is put

11 the burden on those rate case expenses, those external

12 or those internal if you are North Shore and Peoples

13 Gas, what you're seeking to recover in rate case

14 expense, the provisions of the Rule, the ten factors at

15 the end, the discovery obligations, all are focused to

16 say if you want to seek recovery of rate case expense,

17 you've got to show that was necessary.  It wasn't

18 duplicative based on the complexity of the case, amount

19 of work needed to be performed.  You have got to prove

20 what you did and what the costs were you were seeking to

21 recover for were just and reasonable.  So to take that

22 extra step and also force a utility that doesn't charge

23 internal work and projects and hours to go ahead and do

24 that just to show that in addition to all this other
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1 evidence and reasonableness there is also this, it's not

2 only overkill.  It's a burden that's benefit is

3 outweighed by the cost.  We agree with the other

4 utilities to say that that .200(b)(2), I believe, the

5 provision is just not necessary in this Rule based on

6 the other requirements of providing evidence and without

7 the factors to show reasonableness.

8       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  I have a question.  I believe

9 Ms. Moore stated earlier that she believed that not only

10 was taking that extra step and providing the internal

11 time to determine whether or not there was duplicity,

12 not only was it unnecessary but that it did compromise

13 some -- it would have compromised some attorney work

14 product.  What is your stance on that?

15       MR. EIDUKAS:  Commissioner, I agree.  And, you

16 know, I think there's been some litigation in rate cases

17 over the years over what is produceable based on work

18 product and attorney-client privilege issues.  A lot of

19 which it's kind of worked out in.  I think the answer is

20 a lot is being produced.  But I do agree that also

21 showing -- And I will say, if you are electing to seek

22 recovery for what your own people are doing in an

23 incremental rate case expense, you probably have kind of

24 opened the door to kind of waiving or at least
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1 showing -- you need to show a little bit more because

2 you want that incremental recovery.  But it is intrusive

3 of a work product, your decision making, your strategy.

4 And, you know, if you are not seeking to recover that

5 expense as rate case expense, you shouldn't have to.

6 You know, it would definitely be intrusive and violative

7 of the privileges.  I do agree with Ms. Moore on that

8 point.

9           I also do agree with her and I do want to say

10 quickly that I think there is also, you know, a problem

11 with focusing on the word duplicative and forgetting

12 collaborative.  A lot of what is done in unlike a

13 plumber fixing a pipe, there is only one pipe to be put

14 into a facility.  But in rate case and legal work where

15 there are many different aspects to a piece of testimony

16 or a brief or a pleading, there is benefit in the end

17 product to having, you know, more than one set of eyes

18 look at a piece of work.  And there is collaboration and

19 different perspectives that are added.  So the focus on

20 duplication alone without looking at all these other

21 factors that the Rule is already having you look at, I

22 think, would be a mistake and I agree with my colleagues

23 on that.  Unless there is any other questions, I believe

24 I have covered everything I wanted to discuss and
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1 reserve the rest of my time.

2       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

3       MS. McNEIL:  5:57.

4       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  5:57.  Next up are Jessica

5 Cardoni and Mike Lannon from the Illinois Commerce

6 Commission.  Good morning.

7       MS. CARDONI:  Good morning.

8       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Would you like to reserve time?

9       MS. CARDONI:  Just whatever is left.

10       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  That's probably the easiest way

11 to do it.

12       MS. CARDONI:  Right.  Good morning, Chairman and

13 Commissioners.  Jessica Cardoni on behalf of Staff.

14           I just have a couple of prepared remarks.  I

15 know I am batting sixth here so I don't know how much I

16 need to repeat, but I am happy to answer any questions

17 that you might have.  I had a couple of comments just

18 preliminarily because we have heard several of the

19 parties here talk about how there really is no new

20 standard in how rate case expense has for many, many

21 years been considered the ordinary and necessary

22 business expense that's recoverable.  And Staff is

23 disagreeing with that because we have had some changes

24 here.  9-229 was modified to require the Commission to
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1 specifically assess rate case expense.  And Staff would

2 argue that without the information that this draft rule

3 is asking for, you would be unable to do that.  I think

4 it bears repeating as well that, you know, 9-229 is a

5 not a blank check for the attorneys.  This is something

6 that the Commission needs to look at.  In the last

7 several years all of the parties have taken a lot of

8 measures to examine this issue.  And it has become a

9 very contested issue.

10           We agree with the proposed order that to make

11 that specific finding the Commission is able to do that

12 without the detailed questions, without the detailed

13 information that we think the Rule is asking for.

14           A large part of what the Rule asks for is

15 information that the utilities already provide to the

16 parties asking for discovery during the discovery

17 process.  We don't believe it's onerous in anyway.  On

18 issues one and two that you specifically requested the

19 parties discuss, Staff's position is that if utilities

20 submit internal staff or internal staff expenses for

21 consultants or attorneys under 9-229, then the draft

22 rule should apply to those expenses.  We don't believe

23 that the Madigan case nor 9-229 limits experts or

24 attorneys' fees to those outside in any way.
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1           We strongly urge the Commission to retain the

2 language in our original proposed rule, which does

3 require information in-house counsel and in-house

4 experts if the utility chooses to use Section 9-229 for

5 recovery.

6           On issue three, Staff disagrees with the

7 proposed order's conclusion that Madigan is controlling

8 them all.  The language in Madigan clearly states that

9 Kaiser is meant to be the guidance of the Commission and

10 the parties that comply with 9-229.  There is big

11 distinction between the Kaiser case and rate cases under

12 the GSA because none of the Kaiser cases involve a

13 situation where the payer of attorney fees is not the

14 losing party.

15           However again it is Staff's position that the

16 draft rule properly uses Kaiser in that line of cases to

17 develop guidelines.  The draft rule requires utilities

18 to specify among other things the services performed, by

19 whom they were performed, the time expended, and the

20 rates charged.  Staff believes the draft rules ensures

21 the Commission can make a specific finding about the

22 justness and reasonableness before you and experts

23 pursuant to 9-229.  And I am free to answer any

24 question.
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1       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  I have a question.  Thank you,

2 Ms. Cardoni.  The privileges of attorney-client as well

3 as work product are very seriously taken in the legal

4 world.  What is your opinion on the fact that these

5 additional requests for medical leave, billing time for

6 internal employees, that that would violate the

7 attorney-work-product privilege?

8       MS. CARDONI:  It's definitely been an issue

9 especially recently because Staff does request these

10 invoices and we see a bunch of information, which has

11 the detailed items of what an attorney charged and what

12 it cost and what they did.  And there are redactions,

13 significant redactions.  For the most part we have been

14 able to go through additional discovery to get more

15 information.  Because it's been Staff's opinion that if

16 we don't know what was done, we are going to make an

17 adjustment and remove that from rate case expense.

18 Otherwise how on earth can we know it was just and

19 reasonable?  I definitely think there is an ability that

20 utilities have to give more information without waiving

21 any confidentiality or attorney-client privilege.  I

22 mean, you can say you discussed discovery issues as it

23 pertains to plaintiff.  We don't need to know that you

24 were looking at three adjustments about plaintiff and
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1 these are the two that we decided to make.  That kind of

2 detail is not necessary in order for Staff to make a

3 recommendation and we think the same applies for you.

4       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

5       MS. McNEIL:  15:04.

6       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Next we have the Citizens Utility

7 Board represented by Christie Hicks.  Good morning.

8       MS. HICKS:  Good morning.  I would like to reserve

9 about three minutes for rebuttal, please.

10       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Go right ahead.

11       MS. HICKS:  Good morning, Chairman and

12 Commissioners.  My name is Christie Hicks.  As you know

13 I represent the Citizens Utility Board.  Today I'm going

14 to discuss the importance of including affiliate and

15 rate cases expense within the scope of this Rule and the

16 standards articulated by the Madigan case with respect

17 to rate case expense.

18           The first question that the Commission asks

19 the parties to discuss today is whether internal or

20 affiliate utility rate case expense is within the scope

21 of Section 9-229 of the PUA and should be included in

22 the Rule.  Internal and affiliate rate case expense is

23 within the scope of this Rule.  All rate case expense

24 whether incurred in-house or from an outside consultant
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1 or attorney should receive the same level of scrutiny.

2 This Rule is the result of where a party had concern

3 about expenses that Com Ed sought to recover as claimed

4 rate case expense.  In that proceeding the Commission

5 determined that the rulemaking would provide guidance

6 for all parties and the Commission for what evidence is

7 needed to establish that attorneys' fees and expert

8 witness fees are indeed just and reasonable.

9           It only makes sense that the guidance that the

10 Commission sought at that time didn't apply strictly to

11 outside expenses.  It would apply to all rate case

12 expenses for which utilities seek recovery under 9-229.

13 Rate case expenses should receive heightened scrutiny.

14 Ratepayers established the expense of attorneys and

15 experts whose job it is to raise their rates.  Utilities

16 are concerned with maximizing profits for their

17 shareholders.  The Commission is correct to be concerned

18 with ensuring that rate case expense is carefully

19 evaluated and that concern should relate to all rate

20 case expense.

21           Another issue with respect to this is that for

22 rate case expense the Commission does find to be just

23 and reasonable, the Commission must still ensure that

24 that rate case expense is not double recovered by the
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1 rate utility or that it is over-recovered as a result of

2 being put into ONM or being amortized.  If the utility

3 does recover its internal or ability to extend through

4 rate case expense, extra scrutiny is required to be sure

5 that those expenses are not also included in utilities

6 general ONM.  If internal and affiliate expenses are

7 excluded from the scope of this Rule, then utilities

8 would not be required to provide the level of detail

9 required for all outside expenses under this Rule, that

10 would make it more difficult to ensure that double

11 recovery is not an issue.

12           As far as putting rate case expense in general

13 ONM, this is particularly applicable to overtime paid to

14 internal employees who do extra time as a result of a

15 rate case and it applies to affiliate expenses charged

16 to the utility for the purpose of litigating the rate

17 case.

18           When an attorney is preparing a rate case it

19 generally incurs more of those costs than it incurs in

20 other years.  Rate case expense is there for an

21 extraordinary nonrecurring cost, but rate case expense

22 that is simply recovered in ONM is recovered as if it is

23 an expense that is incurred every year.  Unlike ONM

24 9-229 rate case expense is generally amortized.
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1 Therefore the Rule should allow for utilities to pull

2 out their internal and affiliate rate case expense from

3 the rest of ONM to help ensure that it is amortized and

4 not recovered as though it's being incurred every year.

5           In sum, CUB believes as a policy matter this

6 Rule should apply to all rate case expense, not just a

7 part of it.  And including internal and affiliate rate

8 case expense within the scope of this Rule is important

9 to ensure that utilities do not over recover for rate

10 case expense.

11           Moving onto the second question that the --

12       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Before you do that, if I could,

13 the question asked Mr. Tomc earlier on is now that we

14 have got a new construct for two of the utilities and

15 virtually rate cases every year, does that change the

16 question that you were just analyzing just a moment ago?

17       MS. HICKS:  It does only for those two utilities

18 that are participating obviously for their electric side

19 only.  And it only solves the problem of making sure

20 that the expense isn't over recovered as a result of it

21 being put in ONM as opposed to being a 9-229 expense.

22 That doesn't the solve of the problem of the possibility

23 of over recovery as a result of it being double

24 recovered through rate case expense and then also that a
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1 utility has perhaps inadvertently even included it

2 within its general ONM as well.  If they don't pull it

3 out, then we don't know.

4       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.

5       MS. HICKS:  So the second question that the

6 Commission has asked the parties to discuss today is

7 whether Section .200(b)(2), now Section .200(b)(3),

8 which requires the utilities to provide evidence

9 establishing what services the employee performed should

10 be included in Rule assuming internal utility expenses

11 are excluded from the Rule.  Now because internal and

12 affiliate expenses should be subject to the provision of

13 this Rule, we support this section as was written by

14 Staff.  We also support the proposed order's conclusion

15 about ensuring that outside counsel or experts are not

16 duplicating the work performed by a utility or affiliate

17 employee.  If internal and affiliate is included within

18 the scope of this Rule, then the provisions that Staff

19 provided will ensure that enough documentation is

20 available to show whether any work is duplicative.  If

21 the Commission determines that internal and affiliate

22 expenses are excluded from the Rule, then we believe

23 that the modifications the proposed order made are

24 important and should be retained.  But to be clear, we
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1 first and foremost support the Rule the way that Staff

2 wrote it.

3           Then finally the third question the Commission

4 has asked the parties to address is the new standard for

5 rate case expense established by 9-229 and Madigan.  CUB

6 agrees with the Court in Madigan that the Kaiser factors

7 are useful tools for the Commission and supports their

8 incorporation into Staff's direct rule.

9           However, CUB agrees with the other parties you

10 have heard from today that Madigan does not provide the

11 bright line rule that the proposed order says that it

12 does.  Most importantly Madigan does not prohibit the

13 Commission from evaluating internal rate case expense in

14 the same manner that it evaluates outside rate case

15 expense.  As you have heard other parties explain, the

16 language in Madigan is very clear here.  They say we

17 point the Commission to other cases.  The Commission has

18 the ability to consider these factors.  We believe that

19 these cases regarding an award of attorneys' fees can

20 provide guidance.

21           Madigan pointed the Commission to the Kaiser

22 factors saying they could provide guidance and said that

23 the Commission has the ability to consider them.  The

24 Kaiser factors are appropriately included in the Rule as
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1 among those the Commission can consider in evaluating

2 the reasonableness of rate case expense.  However the

3 Kaiser factors should not limit the Commission

4 particularly with respect to whether it provides the

5 same level of scrutiny to in-house rate case expenses as

6 it does for outside rate case expense.

7           Commission proceedings are quite unique from

8 the civil court in many ways.  In the underlying case in

9 Kaiser, the parties were a lessor and a lessee and the

10 dispute was a contract dispute.  Attorneys' fees were

11 provided for in the lease agreement that was in dispute

12 at that point.  The Kaiser Court didn't discuss in-house

13 or affiliate expense because that simply wasn't an issue

14 in that case.  Therefore that doesn't in any way limit

15 the Commission from considering it in these proceedings

16 where obviously the facts are vastly different.  CUB

17 appreciates the work of the administrative law judge and

18 of all parties in a collaborative effort in this case

19 and requests that the Commission adopt Staff's draft

20 rule with respect to the issues that we have discussed

21 today.

22       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  If I could before you proceed?

23       MS. HICKS:  Sure.

24       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  We have had some of the
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1 discussion during today about this idea of duplicative

2 work being kind of held out.  You mentioned the word a

3 couple times too.  Can something in one of these cases

4 be duplicative and not unreasonable?  I mean, is that

5 possible to have that?

6       MS. HICKS:  You know, in the underlying Com Ed

7 case that this rulemaking came from, 10-0467,

8 duplicative was a big issue.  It was duplicative in the

9 sense there were multiple witnesses testifying on the

10 exact same issue and, you know, we didn't -- we thought

11 that was unnecessary and of course the utility is free

12 to hire whomever it wants and to spend however much it

13 wants.  But was it reasonable to recover that amount

14 from rate bearers?  So as far as duplicative if the

15 Commission determines that work was duplicative such

16 that the utility could, you know, easily have made its

17 case without X, Y, and Z, such was the case in 10-0467,

18 then no.  That expense is not reasonable.  I think from

19 the utilities that you have heard from today considering

20 a particular attorney's work to be duplicative versus

21 collaborative, you need the level of detail requested

22 and the tools in order to make that determination.

23       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Just to get a real basic

24 hypothetical then and say -- I mean, those of us who
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1 have done some practice of law know sometimes it's good

2 to have a couple sets of eyes look at a particular

3 filing or a particular piece of evidence for example.

4 So if a utility has both, utilizes both in-house and

5 external counsel for their cases, is it unreasonable per

6 se then if they have their internal counsel and the

7 external counsel that they have hired for a particular

8 case look at the same document to see if it needs

9 tweaking or needs some changes?

10       MS. HICKS:  I would say it's absolutely not

11 unreasonable per se.  But you need a certain level of

12 detail in order to make that determination and that's

13 what this Rule is intended to do.

14       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So it's not just -- it's

15 something beyond just saying it's duplicative and to get

16 toward the just and reasonable.

17       MS. HICKS:  Right.  That's something that you need

18 to see certain information in order to make that

19 determination, I believe.

20       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

21       MS. HICKS:  I will reserve the rest of my time.

22       MS. McNEIL:  8:03.

23       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  8:03.  Thank you, Ms. Hicks.  Now

24 we have Karen Lusson from the Office of the Attorney
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1 General and we will have 20 minutes.

2       MS. LUSSON:  Thank you, Chairman, Commissioners.

3 My name is Karen Lusson.  I am an Assistant Attorney

4 General and I am here on behalf of the People of the

5 State of Illinois.

6       At the end of the day this rulemaking is about

7 creating a Rule that provides you with an evidentiary

8 framework that you can assess whether any rate case

9 expense presented to you as rate case expense is just

10 and reasonable, not just outside counsel and outside

11 consultant expense.  So the answer to the question of

12 whether internal and outside or internal and affiliate

13 rate case expense should be included within the Rule and

14 is covered by Section 9-229 is perhaps best revealed in

15 the statute itself.

16           And so if you look at Exhibit No. 1, which is

17 actually Section 9-229 of the Public Utilities Act, it

18 clearly references Commission assessments of any amount

19 expended by public utility to compensate attorneys or

20 technical experts.  So in-house affiliate expense

21 certainly falls within the scope of Section 9-229.  The

22 Madigan Appellate Court decision in this case

23 specifically examined the meaning and interpretation of

24 and requirements of Section 9-229.  And the proposed
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1 order, as we know, pointed to the Madigan ruling as the

2 basis for the recommendation of internal and affiliate

3 expenses be excluded from the Rule.  But we respectfully

4 disagree with that conclusion.  If you look at AG Oral

5 Argument Exhibit 2, which is a direct quote from the

6 Madigan ruling, the Court specifically referenced the

7 need to assess -- again any amount.  There is that word

8 any, which is also found in Section 9-229, not just

9 outside expense, not just outside attorney and

10 consultant invoices.  In fact, the question of the

11 recoverability of internal versus external rate case

12 expense wasn't even at issue in that case.  The issue

13 being examined by the Court was whether there was enough

14 evidence in the record for the Commission to claim that

15 the expense at issue was just and reasonable and whether

16 that the Commission's findings were sufficient in that

17 regard and the Court said there was none.

18           Now, the proposed order's thinking on this is

19 that the Madigan case referenced the Kaiser line of case

20 law as guidance for assessing reasonableness of rate

21 case expense.  And as Ms. Hicks aptly described, that

22 case didn't allow -- didn't even address the whole issue

23 of internal and affiliate expense and whether that

24 should be part of this special -- that Section 9-229
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1 requires.  We think it's a leap in logic to point to the

2 Madigan case in saying this is a red line that bars

3 inclusion of in-house affiliate expense from your Rule.

4           Again, you will see the Court referenced the

5 Kaiser case and the attorney fee type cases, which

6 references a need to specify services performed, by who

7 they were performed, time expended, and the hourly rate

8 charged.  The Court says, you can see at the bottom,

9 that Section 9-229 mandates a more detailed finding than

10 what is generally required of the Commission.  Otherwise

11 the purpose of the legislative action to enact it was

12 unnecessary.

13           Again, it also referenced that the Commission

14 has the ability to consider the rulings or the criteria

15 that are listed in the Kaiser case and other cases that

16 were referenced therein.  If you look at Oral Argument

17 Exhibit 3 there you see another quote from the Madigan

18 case.  While the Court did reference those four

19 criteria, you see too though that it also discussed

20 other factors that will help the Commission if it so

21 chooses to evaluate whether services performed are in

22 fact just and reasonable.  So it goes beyond -- it gives

23 you the opportunity and suggests such that it goes

24 beyond just listing the services performed, by whom, the
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1 time expended, and the hourly rate charged.  Staff, to

2 be clear, did a good job of incorporating those in its

3 January 18, 2013 proposed order.

4           Again, whether internal or affiliate expenses

5 are recoverable wasn't even an issue in the Appellate

6 ruling.  So the Madigan case absolutely can't be a basis

7 for excluding expenses.  Also as you have heard from the

8 utility, we have several utilities in this state that do

9 include internal and affiliate expense as Section 9-229

10 as rate case expense.  We know that water, certain water

11 companies, the utilities have referenced internal and

12 affiliate rate case expense.  Peoples Gas and North

13 Shore cases and MidAmerican, although they indicated

14 they have not, want to be able to have that option in

15 the future if need be.  So it's important to create a

16 Rule that's flexible and provides you with the framework

17 that enables you to assess whether any kind of expense

18 again is just and reasonable just like you look at

19 outside attorney and outside consultant expense.

20           So to be clear, what should the new Rule look

21 like in our view?  The January 18, 2013 Staff proposed

22 Rule including sections that listed the same criteria as

23 applies to outside attorney and consultant services

24 requiring disclosure of time spent, description of work
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1 performed, and other details, we think you will need to

2 determine justness and reasonableness.  So the

3 Commission's final order should add back in Subpart B of

4 .20 scope and restore that list of evidentiary

5 requirements that was in that portion of the Rule.  In

6 addition, Section .200, which is called required support

7 for compensation costs for in-house utility and rate

8 case expense should be restored as was in that draft

9 rule.  Again, if you -- we feel that if you don't

10 restore that language, you are in a sense creating two

11 different sets of criteria for rate case expense, one

12 for outside consultant and outside lawyer expense and

13 another for in-house and affiliate.  If you leave

14 in-house and affiliate out of the Rule, you won't have

15 the tools you need to determine whether those costs that

16 are charged to ratepayers are in fact just and

17 reasonable.

18           Turning to the second issue very briefly, as

19 you have heard, we believe internal and affiliate

20 expenses need to be part of the Rule.  So while we

21 appreciate the proposed order interest in ensuring that

22 there is not a duplication of in-house and outside rate

23 case expense work being performed, we think the best way

24 to do it is in Staff's original Rule.  Again, it lays
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1 out comparable criteria for both in-house and outside

2 technical and legal expense.

3           So bottom line in order to cover your

4 obligation to assess the gentlemen of any rate case

5 expense, the in-house and affiliate expense needs to be

6 returned to the Rule.

7           Finally, regarding the third issue that is the

8 new standard for rate case expense established by

9 Section 9-229 in the Madigan case, again, I would point

10 to Oral Argument Exhibit 2 because I think the Appellate

11 Court said it best, certainly better than I could try to

12 rephrase it.

13           You will see back in Oral Argument Exhibit 2

14 that Section 9-229 mandates a more detailed finding than

15 what is generally required of the Commission.  Otherwise

16 the purpose of the legislative action to enact it was

17 unnecessary.

18           So in this instance the proposed order got it

19 exactly right when it rejected the utility's argument

20 that Section 9-229 does not create any sort of different

21 obligations or reviewed requirements by the Commission.

22 If you need to make a particular finding of justness and

23 reasonableness as the Appellate Court found, then you

24 have got to ensure that the utilities supply you with
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1 the evidence you need to satisfy that requirement.  It's

2 also important that that happens in every case no matter

3 what intermitter is there, no matter how many Staff

4 witnesses are assigned to the case.  We think Staff does

5 a good job and really digs into these cases.  But, you

6 know, the level of investigation may not be equivalent

7 in every case again depending on how many parties

8 intervene.  If you have got a framework in place that

9 makes it clear to all of the utilities that if you are

10 going to file a rate case and you have rate case

11 expense, that the Commission needs certain information

12 in order for them, the Commission to do its job to

13 assess justness and reasonableness and ensures

14 consistency in your orders and it ensures consistency in

15 the evidence that's presented.

16           And just to be clear, contrary to what some of

17 the utility attorneys have implied this morning, it

18 doesn't just simply require you to discuss the evidence

19 or make a particular finding that you are making that we

20 are making a Section 9-229 finding here.  It doesn't

21 change the criteria of justness and reasonableness.  No

22 one is saying that.  The proposed order isn't saying

23 that.  In terms of permitting expense recovery, every

24 expense recovered in rates has to be just and
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1 reasonable.  But what it does absolutely require is that

2 the Commission conduct a specific investigation of this

3 expense category, that the rate case expense is in fact

4 just and reasonable.  So it's not a higher substantive

5 standard.  But it is a more nuanced and detailed

6 evidentiary requirement than other expenses not

7 specifically highlighted in the Public Utilities Act.

8           Otherwise as the Madigan Court said

9 Section 9-229 becomes meaningless.  Again, bottom line,

10 we are here to create a Rule that's flexible, that

11 provides all of the utilities with the same evidentiary

12 requirements whether they use internal and affiliate

13 expense as part of the rate case expense recovery or

14 not.  And, again, the January 18, 2013 Staff Rule is

15 that kind of flexible Rule that permits the Commission

16 to be able to evaluate all kinds of expenses, not just

17 outside counsel expenses.  And I -- I might add it does

18 so in a way that ensures an open and transparent process

19 because that's an important point too.  This is an

20 expense included in customer rates.  It's important that

21 the cost associated with that expense and the basis for

22 those costs be open and transparent.  I guess I will

23 reserve --

24       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Let me ask you a quick question
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1 on the flip side of what I asked one of the attorneys

2 for the utilities.

3           It doesn't apply or suggest or mandate a

4 higher evidentiary standard.  You are saying that it

5 doesn't either 9-229 as interpreted by Madigan and it's

6 just requiring us to come up with more definitive

7 findings for the record so that can be looked at.  Do we

8 need more specifics in the Rule to do that?  Isn't that

9 something we can just do as a Commission in every case

10 without having specific evidentiary requirements in a

11 Rule?

12       MS. LUSSON:  So does your question start with the

13 premise that Com Ed presented that it doesn't or are you

14 saying -- I want to make sure I understand.

15       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I am saying there's been

16 discussion here that the Rule itself purports to create

17 a higher evidentiary standard.  And you are saying that

18 it doesn't.  But you are also saying that, I think, that

19 there are more steps that are needed in the Rule, more

20 types of evidence that need to be required that we get

21 to look at them, but can't we do that without having the

22 Rule?  Be that specific?

23       MS. LUSSON:  I think that this rule that Staff

24 drafted in January is a rule that flushes out those four
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1 single criteria listed in the Kaiser case.  And it does

2 so based on -- if you go back to AG

3 Cross-Exhibit 3 [sic].  And it -- that indented

4 paragraph was the Court attempting to sort of elaborate

5 on those four basic pieces of information referenced in

6 the Kaiser case.  So the problem is, how do you know if

7 the utility just presents you with this is the hourly

8 rate, this is what we did, this was the amount charged,

9 how do we know that was reasonable?  Well, the Court

10 provided you with the kinds of questions such as, you

11 know, the degree of responsibility required, the usual

12 and customary charges.  That's addressed in the Rule.

13 And things like duplication, that is an important issue

14 because that has come up in rate cases.  When you have a

15 utility filing three pieces of testimony by outside

16 consultants who are charging in excess of $500 an hour,

17 then that's cause for question.  Again, these are

18 ratepayers footing the bill for costs that work against

19 their pocketbook's interest.  And I think that's really

20 what Section 9-229 is all about.

21       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I agree with you on that.  In the

22 hypothetical you just laid out, if that was all the we

23 had and given where the burdens are of proof in these

24 cases, wouldn't we be justified in saying in that case
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1 there is enough evidence to say that the three expenses

2 reported this same thing and were all necessary, do I

3 need to have more specifics in a rule for me to be able

4 to do that?

5       MS. LUSSON:  Yes.  And here's why:  It kind of

6 goes back to my prior point.  For whatever reason, you

7 know, Staff may have not been able to do the kind of

8 detail investigation to pull that out or the AG's office

9 or CUB for that particular case.  Let's say it's a very

10 small water company.  Maybe they weren't able to

11 intervene in that case because of budgetary concerns and

12 the amount of staffing we have.  What is important is to

13 make sure that this expense, which is essentially

14 fee-shifting to ratepayers, really we probably -- if you

15 asked them they would prefer not to pay those

16 expenses -- to make sure that the evidence presented is

17 the same in every case.  So Staff's Rule gets to that,

18 especially Part 300 where it kind of elaborates on the

19 criteria that will help you determine whether something

20 is duplicative or whether some -- the rate charge was

21 excessive.

22           So I do think and I hope I am answering your

23 question that that kind of criteria laid out in parts

24 .200 and .300 of the Rule is absolutely necessary and
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1 really reflective.  If you read what is in .300 of the

2 Rule, it's an absolute attempt to follow the guidelines

3 that was given by the Court v. Madigan.

4       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  And the language such as and all

5 of the criteria, I follow that.  That's in the addendum

6 paragraph that you have in here?

7       MS. LUSSON:  Right.  Yeah.

8       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Does that lead you to believe

9 there could be or should be more things?

10       MS. LUSSON:  I think that this is a Rule that

11 tells the utilities what the minimum requirements are in

12 terms of evidence.  If this something comes up and

13 raises a question in the minds of Staff witnesses or

14 intervener accountant, I think that the Rule doesn't

15 necessarily prevent that from happening.  So if

16 something, some expense like an attorney, a law firm is

17 charging extra meals or something because they worked

18 late -- that's a very small example, but that that's

19 probably not going to be in the Rule.  There is nothing

20 that says food charge or cabs late at night.  But if

21 there are invoices that come in as rate case expense

22 that raise a red flag, then I think Staff and

23 interveners should be able to question those.  And I

24 think this Rule is flexible enough that it allows them
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1 to do that.

2       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  And it wouldn't be flexible

3 enough to allow them to do that if it wasn't spelled out

4 in the Rule?

5       MS. LUSSON:  Well, yes, it would.  Yes, certainly,

6 yeah.  But I think if you are going to -- the whole

7 point of this rulemaking -- and I think if you go back

8 to the 10-0467 order, the basis for us standing here

9 today is the notion that the Commission was struggling

10 with evaluating the proposed adjustments that Staff and

11 interveners had made because it was missing criteria.

12       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

13       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  I have another question.  I

14 know you essential restated you believe rate case

15 expense recovery for, I guess, affiliate or for certain

16 expenses such as law firms and consultants, you know,

17 that part is essentially fee shifting to ratepayers.

18       MS. LUSSON:  Yeah.

19       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  What is your stance for saying

20 internal recovery of expenses, you know, in-house

21 counsel for example, that that should be included in the

22 Rule?  Because essentially they are being salaried to do

23 their particular job as opposed to those that are on a

24 retainer or, you know, and sometimes on a contractual
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1 agreement?

2       MS. LUSSON:  Right.  Well, when utilities such as

3 Peoples Gas have included internal and affiliate

4 expenses in their rate case expense requests, it was an

5 indication that was incremental expense, expense over

6 and above what is normally done by the affiliate service

7 company that assists the company with legal matters.  So

8 anytime internal and affiliate expense is charged as

9 rate chase expense, it's an acknowledgment that this is

10 incremental cost over and above the usual service

11 company costs that get allocated to the utility.  So

12 most in-house and affiliate expense is charged

13 generally, I think, annually to administrative and

14 general expense.  But that category of accounting says

15 that administrative in general is expense that can't be

16 assigned to any other accounting category so it falls

17 into administrative and general.  So rate case expense

18 by its very definition is something that doesn't fall

19 into any specific category because it's too -- it's

20 being incurred to raise the rates for and create a

21 revenue requirement for the entire company.

22       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  Right.  So obviously your

23 stance is that it should be included within the Rule.

24 But in the event that it is not, you still believe that
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1 the internal time should be received by the Commission

2 in order to determine whether or not those external

3 expenses are reasonable and just?

4       MS. LUSSON:  Well, again, our preference is --

5       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  To include it in the Rule.

6       MS. LUSSON:  -- to include it in the Rule.  And we

7 don't think that the proposed order's sort of secondary

8 example of internal and affiliate kind of puts it on the

9 same footing as the outside counsel.  That's why we say

10 that it's not just our preference for it to be included

11 in the Rule.  We think it's absolutely necessary.

12       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  Thank you.

13       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Round two.

14                    (A short break was had.)

15       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Mr. Tomc, I heard your

16 request for the extra 12 seconds.  I will give you two

17 minutes.

18       MR. TOMC:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I do

19 appreciate that.  I thank the Commission.  I just want

20 to react quickly to a couple things I heard.  One of the

21 things I heard from counsel for the Citizens Utility

22 Board was the expectation that the Rule would require

23 the removal of internal costs and the amortization of

24 internal employee cost as a result of rate case expense.
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1 I would just like to offer that cost for -- salary cost

2 for internal employees are fixed and they are going to

3 be owed by the company, by the utility company whether

4 they are allocated for services company or directly

5 incurred by the company irrespective of a pendency of a

6 rate case.  So the amortization of those expenses would

7 not be called for.

8       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Do they have to be though?  I

9 mean, what if -- I mean, your company, yes; but if in

10 other companies folks are compensated differently,

11 couldn't they have different results?

12       MR. TOMC:  It can have a different result

13 depending how the rate case expense is presented.  I

14 think we heard about that a little bit today.  In the

15 beginning I talked about perspectives.  We don't ever

16 include any internal employee costs for time at Ameren

17 in a rate case expense and do not expect to do so.

18       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

19       MR. TOMC:  I think I heard that if a utility seeks

20 to recover affiliate costs just like outside counsel,

21 then the Rule should provide for that.  I went ahead

22 when I heard the language and I looked up in my notes

23 here that on the People's order on Page 172 -- that's

24 Docket 12-0511 -- that there were actually invoices
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1 generated from an affiliate and those were incremental

2 on top of and above what was included in the test year.

3 So that's a different business model than my client has.

4 I think that gets to the concern with some of the

5 language particularly with regard to .200(b)(2)

6 regarding duplicative work provided.  Because it would

7 seemingly require to us create the fictional invoice

8 based on a unitized rate that doesn't really exist.

9 It's an allocated cost for services company.  In that

10 sense I think that essentially -- that fiction, I think,

11 confuses the issue of what we are actually seeking to

12 recover from rate case expense.  We just ask that our

13 case be taken and assessed on the facts that we

14 presented evidence in that case and the business model

15 that we utilized.

16       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Tomc.

17           Ms. Moore?  We have 2:22 for you.

18       MS. MOORE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I guess I

19 want to focus on the AG's comments and for the rulings

20 to be flexible because not all utilities are alike.  The

21 changes often impact smaller utilities that file a

22 traditional rate case.

23           I think, Chairman, you hit upon the

24 flexibility allows the Commission to determine what
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1 information is probative in the Commission's

2 determination.  Again, the new section that was added by

3 the ALJ and not proposed to Staff about the internal

4 utility costs, again I am not convinced -- it's going to

5 be overly burdensome for a smaller utility like

6 MidAmerican to track that and I'm not convinced it's

7 going to be particularly probative in how you decide

8 what's collaborative, what's duplicative, duplicative

9 versus supervision.  My main concern is looking back at

10 our gas rate case, in those rate case expenses, the only

11 expenses were hotel fees and for the ROE witness.  If we

12 have to provide all these internal expenses, does it

13 really matter to you how many hours the utility put

14 together for all the rate case requirements?  Because

15 you need to focus in what -- that's not going to

16 obviously be duplicative to what the ROE witness did;

17 but to that extent, the supervisor of that ROE witness,

18 the business person who retained that, there is going to

19 be a lot of back and forth where he -- it was a he last

20 time -- did a lot of the front work for that ROE witness

21 and they focused that ROE witness on a certain thing so

22 that the time could be minimized and supplemented.

23 There will be some stuff in the brief.  The brief was

24 written internally and then run by the ROE witness.  How
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1 are you going to determine that?  The hours aren't going

2 to show that.  How do you get that detail so you can

3 make that determination?  I think it's important you

4 looked at the services performed, who they were

5 performed by, and the hourly rate.  If you see that --

6 you're going to be seeing all of the ROE witnesses.  If

7 you see one that's a little out of whack, a thousand

8 hours for ROE, really?  Then again if it was an

9 extremely briefed issue, then it may be reasonable in

10 that context.  Again, not all rate cases are the same

11 needing to maintain that flexibility.  With that, are

12 there any questions?  We have 5 seconds.

13       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.

14           Ms. Barrett?

15       MS. BARRETT:  I think I would like to address one

16 of the questions that you had for someone else, which

17 was, is there anything in the Rule that would prevent

18 you from entering, making that a Rule?  And I think

19 there definitely is.  The Rule talks about proving that

20 expenses were necessary.  And necessary is not the same

21 as just and reasonable.  We could use oral argument

22 today as an example.  Was it necessary to hold oral

23 argument today?  No.  You probably could have figured

24 this out without all of us up here talking.  But was it
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1 reasonable?  Yes.  I think we are helping crystallize

2 the issues.  We are answering some of your questions.

3 So necessary and just and reasonable are not the same

4 thing.  And the Rule goes beyond the just and reasonable

5 standard by having necessary in there.  I think it's

6 also an unworkable and problematic standard because then

7 you are policing -- you know, was 27 pages of testimony

8 necessary?  Could it have been done in ten?  Would it

9 have been cheaper to write it in ten or more expensive?

10 Should the utility object to data requests instead of

11 responding to them?  You just don't need to go there.

12           Staff also suggested that you need the draft

13 rule to make the determination with the just and

14 reasonable determination.  I think the AG suggested that

15 as well.  I think there are parts of the draft rule that

16 will help you with that, but there are parts that won't

17 help with that at all.  Like the parts that ask for a

18 schedule of payroll taxes with the in-house legal and

19 finance and regulatory departments.  That's not going to

20 help you determine whether what the lawyers did was just

21 and reasonable.  So there is parts that are helpful, but

22 there is definitely parts that are not.

23           I also think that everybody -- people have

24 talked about rate case expense, rate case expense.  I
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1 think everybody agrees that the universal cost we are

2 talking about are rate case expenses and that phrase has

3 meaning.  It's defined in Part 285.3085 and the 3rd

4 District Appellate Court has also defined it in a case

5 called Aloe Canyon (phonetic) and it's defined as

6 outside legal fees, consulting fees, and incremental

7 personnel expenses.  There was some back and forth about

8 whether the word incremental should be in the draft rule

9 and I think it shows and it should and it helps because

10 incremental in-house expenses are the only expenses that

11 are rate case expense.  They are the only ones subject

12 to the draft rule and the draft rule goes beyond that

13 and starts asking about other internal expenses that are

14 not incremental.  I think it goes so far as to even ask

15 for internal expenses that are not for attorneys or

16 experts.  That's clearly outside of 9-229 as well.

17           CUB made a point about the risk of double

18 recovery.  I think that's a valid point, but I don't

19 think that you need what is in the draft rule.  I think

20 the utilities always submit a schedule of rate case

21 expenses.  There is line items and every service

22 provider is on there.  If they were internal expenses,

23 they would be listed on there.  I know usually we

24 receive a data request as well asking about that.  So
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1 that's something that can be easily -- you just look at

2 the schedules.  You answer a data request.  You don't

3 have to have a whole mountain of evidence to determine

4 that.  I would also like to -- on the level of detail

5 that's required and return to your question that you had

6 for me, Chairman, about an invoice with 500, just

7 500 hours and no more detail.  And it kind of goes back

8 to the point I raised about don't check your common

9 sense at the door.  If you know that an expert -- that

10 was for an expert, say, and you saw that expert testify

11 and you read that expert's testimony, it would not be

12 just and reasonable to disallow the entire 500 hours

13 because you didn't think the invoice had enough detail.

14 You know that some of that work that was done was just

15 and reasonable.  You might not know how much and that

16 might be the utility's fault for not giving you more

17 information.  The problem might be no one objected and

18 they didn't know they should provide more information.

19 You have to look at everything in the totality of the

20 case, in the people that you saw here at the Commission,

21 and in the evidence that was submitted.

22       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So in a case like that, if that's

23 only evidence that we have of that particular expense

24 and the testimony of -- the five of us should decide
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1 that it should be worth so many hours of -- ...

2       MS. BARRETT:  I don't think that's an ideal

3 situation and I would try to avoid that situation.  But

4 I think you could use your best judgment and say this

5 expert conducted this study.  I know he was in court for

6 all day or at the Commission all day.  And he probably

7 took some prep time and they conducted a study, which

8 will probably take this long.  The testimony was 40

9 pages.  I think a reasonable amount is 75 percent or

10 whatever it is, but you can use your knowledge and

11 common sense.

12       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  But aren't we shifting burdens in

13 that case?  If the burden is on the claimant to prove up

14 the expense that they are asking to be received, then

15 they just don't do it for whatever reason, we can't hand

16 them a lump sum.  That doesn't look right and there

17 isn't anything else behind it.  Forcing to us make that

18 determination and deciding amongst ourselves, isn't that

19 taking the burden away from the person who the statute

20 puts it on?

21       MS. BARRETT:  Well, I think the statute puts the

22 burden on the Commission to make the finding.

23       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Sure.

24       MS. BARRETT:  The Public Utilities Act as a whole
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1 does put the burden on the utility, but they may think

2 they have met their burden by producing the invoice and

3 you saw the person testify and all that.  So it's not

4 ideal, but I just want to make the point that you

5 have -- you shouldn't just put this in a separate box

6 and only look at this -- the evidence that you think was

7 submitted just for 9-229.  You should use your real

8 world experience and what you saw happen.  And you may

9 be able to tell sometimes that less evidence is enough

10 to show that it's just and reasonable.  Sometimes you

11 may need more, but you shouldn't hamstring yourself with

12 a Rule that is so detailed and requires all kinds of

13 additional schedules and comparisons and things because

14 you won't always need it.

15       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Can I jump back to incremental

16 for a second?

17       MS. BARRETT:  Sure.

18       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  If you have got an in-house

19 counsel and his or her particular job is to do primarily

20 rate case for, you know, with one -- she is with one of

21 the utilities that needs to do that on a regular basis;

22 is any of that incremental?  I'm trying to understand

23 your position is on what incremental means.

24       MS. BARRETT:  Yeah.  So I think --
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1       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Just the regular salary?

2       MS. BARRETT:  Just the regular salary.

3       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Is that incremental?

4       MS. BARRETT:  I don't think so because the utility

5 has these employees.  There is no one who just works

6 internally on -- I'm not in-house.  But in my experience

7 there is no one internal who is just going to work on

8 rate cases.

9       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So say the percentage --

10       MS. BARRETT:  Because the peaks and valleys of the

11 work can't be one person.

12       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Sure.  But say 50 percent of what

13 that person does is rate cases; is any of their base

14 salary incremental?

15       MS. BARRETT:  No.  No.

16       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So it's incremental to a

17 different rate case expense or outside rate case

18 expense?

19       MS. BARRETT:  Incremental is above and beyond

20 their salary.  The utility is going to have employees

21 regardless.

22           Like you said with the paradigm kind of

23 changed with Com Ed with the formula rates, their

24 in-house salaries didn't change.  So that hasn't changed
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1 because of that.  So the salaries that the utility was

2 going to pay its employees are operating expenses.

3       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  But if the employee wasn't doing

4 rate cases, maybe they wouldn't be employing that

5 person.  So how do we assume that's a person who would

6 be there working for the company anyway?  Or if there

7 would be the same number of attorneys is probably a

8 better example.

9       MS. BARRETT:  But rate case has been defined in

10 Part 285 and by the Court and it says incremental.  To

11 some extent there is going to be a little bit of

12 in-house expense to prepare and prosecute rate cases.

13 That's just part of the general operating expenses and

14 it's not considered rate case expense.

15       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

16       MS. BARRETT:  I think that the duplication

17 issue and I think the AG gave an easy example to

18 understand about two outside witnesses on the same

19 topic, that's something that you don't need to have all

20 this information about internal expenses to figure that

21 out.  That's where you are going to come across it, I

22 think.  The attorney may have engaged two witnesses and

23 you want to see, was it complementary or was it

24 duplicative?  So you don't need that internal
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1 information to do that.  I think my last point that I

2 just want to make is that we hear from time to time and

3 we heard it today customers pay for this and they would

4 prefer to not pay for this.  So that's why you have to

5 make sure that it's necessary and not duplicative.  I

6 think that's a red herring.  Customers pay for all of

7 this.  They paid for the utility's expenses through

8 their taxes.  They pay for the Commerce Commission.

9 They pay for Staff.  They pay for the AG.  They would

10 probably prefer not to pay for any of it, but that's not

11 the point and that's not the question we are asking.

12 The whole reason we need to determine this whether it's

13 just and reasonable is because customers are paying for

14 it.  That's why we determine it just and reasonable.

15 That doesn't justify going beyond and instituting

16 additional substantive standards.

17       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

18       MS. BARRETT:  Thank you.

19       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you very much.

20           Ms. Mitchell, you are the clear winner.

21 16 minutes.

22       COMMISSIONER MAYE:  But you are the loser if you

23 use all of them.

24       MS. MITCHELL:  Thank you.  I think I will pick up
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1 with a related point to the last one that Ms. Barrett

2 was just making about the notion of how ratepayers come

3 into this.  I think counsel for the AG referred to this

4 as looking as this fee shifting to the ratepayers.  I

5 would like to speak to the fee-shifting construct really

6 doesn't apply here in Section 9-229.  Because in the

7 case law that looks at fee shifting, you have either got

8 a statute or a contract that specifically spells out the

9 circumstances in which the losing party would pay the

10 attorney's fees for the prevailing party.  There is a

11 notion built in of a prevailing party or success in some

12 fashion.  But with a rate case you have expenses that

13 are recoverable as long as they are just and reasonable

14 regardless of this notion of success.  And so there is

15 no direct analogy between the fee-shifting cases and the

16 rate case expense contracts under 9-229.

17           Nevertheless as the Madigan case pointed out

18 there is some guidance that can be gleaned from those

19 kinds of cases in the factors that have been referenced

20 here.  There were four factors that the Madigan case

21 cites from the Kaiser case.

22           And that guidance and, I think, Ms. Hicks for

23 CUB referenced the language of the Madigan case very

24 well.  It refers -- it uses words like guidance and the
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1 Commission has the ability to look at those kinds of

2 cases, but there is no mandate for the Commission to do

3 exactly what the cases do in the civil fee-shifting

4 context where you have a statute that provides for that

5 construct.  Here 9-229 doesn't provide for that

6 fee-shifting construct.

7           Another point on Madigan is that I think all

8 of the parties are in agreement that the proposed order

9 goes too far in saying that Madigan was a bright line

10 rule or imposed a requirement on the Commission to do

11 something in particular.  Instead Madigan sets forth the

12 kinds of things that the Commission could look to in

13 making a determination on rate case expense

14 Section 9-229.

15           Further on Madigan, one of the points that

16 Ms. Lusson made was that the Court said that there

17 needed to be this express finding.  And I think

18 Ms. Cardoni also referred to the specific finding that

19 the Commission needs to make.  I don't want the

20 Commission to lose sight of the fact that the Rule as

21 drafted does have certain requirements for the utilities

22 to provide the kind of evidence that would enable the

23 kind of finding that is necessary or is expressed and

24 contemplated by Section 9-229 as reinforced by Madigan.
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1 I don't really think there is a question here today

2 about whether or not sufficient evidence is going to be

3 in the record.  I think that the draft rule that the

4 parties worked on for a long time and the ALJ gave due

5 consideration to does provide the parameters for getting

6 the evidence into the record to make the specific

7 finding that the Commission is required to make.

8       COMMISSIONER McCABE:  Ms. Mitchell, when you say

9 draft rule, do you mean the current draft rule or the

10 one --

11       MS. MITCHELL:  I believe that the current draft

12 rule as attached to the proposed order has the detailed

13 kind of evidence that is needed to provide.  It's the

14 factors that are akin to the kinds of things laid out in

15 the Kaiser case.  All of that is set forth in the draft

16 rule that's attached to -- that's attached to the

17 proposed order.  I think much of the debate today had to

18 do with whether or not that same level of detail is

19 needed for internal expenses in addition to external.  I

20 don't think there is any debate about the fact that for

21 external legally have to provide a good amount of

22 detail.  As Ms. Cardoni pointed out, these utilities are

23 already provided that information and the Rule just

24 adopts what has been developed and practiced in large
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1 part.  But Nicor Gas not taking a position necessarily

2 on whether or not the internal costs should be included

3 and should be therefore subject to that same level of

4 detail, Nicor is neutral on that.  But if the Commission

5 does not include internal expenses within the scope of

6 the Rule, they -- the utility should also not be

7 required to somehow then track internal expenses.

8 That's Nicor's position.  I think that's all I have got

9 unless there are any questions.

10       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Anybody?  Okay.  Thank you very

11 much.

12       MS. MITCHELL:  Hopefully we will get everyone to

13 lunch a little bit quicker.  Thank you.

14       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Mr. Eidukas?

15       MR. EIDUKAS:  Thank you, Commissioner.  Talking

16 about the internal and affiliate cost as rate case

17 expenses, there's really been two issues that have come

18 up here in discussion.  The one that's got the most

19 attention is the one I addressed earlier, which is the

20 ability of the Commission to allow recovery.  On that

21 point, I think, enough has been said although I do want

22 to point out that the Madigan case is silent on whether

23 or not those are going to continue to be recovered.  I

24 think that silence is made even more important because
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1 of the issues in the Madigan case included internal and

2 affiliate rate case expenses that were at issue.  On

3 remand, the Commission analyzed those and allowed

4 recovery for them.  So that addresses the ability to

5 recover internal and affiliate rate case expense.

6           The other question is, should the Rule include

7 those?  On that point, North Shore and Peoples Gas agree

8 with Staff, AG, and CUB that the Rule should for those

9 utilities that elect to seek recovery for those types of

10 costs, the Rule should include provisions addressing the

11 evidence to be provided and factors to be applied.  That

12 way there is no ambiguity for utilities seeking that

13 route.  There is no ambiguity for the Commission or ALJ

14 to analyze those types of expenses and it would -- there

15 would be in those situations, it would be a bad result,

16 I think, policy-wise for internal and affiliate expenses

17 of that nature to be treated differently and analyzed

18 differently than those from outside.  But only in those

19 cases where a utility has elected to seek recovery as

20 rate case expense of those internal and affiliate costs.

21           With respect to incremental there was some

22 discussion of that term.  And I think some of the

23 confusion has been, you know, when you are looking

24 perhaps at an internal employee of a utility if they are
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1 100 percent working on rate cases, how can there really

2 be incremental costs?  I think, an internal employee, I

3 think, the type of incremental costs there would be

4 overtime in that situation.  In fact, part

5 Section 285.3085(A) addresses what the schedules for

6 rate case expense should include.  They do include in

7 Subpart 3 paid overtime.  For internal employee, that

8 really probably wouldn't be incremental.  I think where

9 that incremental really comes into play is when you are

10 talking about company affiliates, which is for North

11 Shore Peoples Gas the type of rate case expense for

12 internal rate case expense that we are talking about,

13 it's the service company bills extra amounts to the

14 utility for work that's done specifically for a rate

15 case.  And that the incremental mentality wouldn't

16 really apply there because those costs wouldn't be

17 billed to the utility and the company wouldn't be billed

18 for those absent existence of a rate case.

19           Last thing I want to point out, when

20 Ms. Lusson was talking about the factors, that indented

21 part in the Madigan case and all the things and factors

22 that the Commission should consider in determining

23 justness and reasonableness of rate case expense, I

24 would agree with everyone that's said the -- I think
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1 it's Section .300 of the various draft rules.  All of

2 them include a list of about nine or ten factors.  They

3 are really trying to capture what was in the Madigan

4 case.  I agree those are a good place to start and good

5 basis for determining justness and reasonableness.

6           I would just point out in one of the questions

7 that you asked Ms. Lusson.  You asked, is this all we

8 can consider?  And I do want to point out that the very

9 straps of the rule that have been considered, those

10 factors are not exclusive of considering other factors.

11 If you look at the language, they may include, maybe

12 without limitation include -- I think was the language

13 used.  In a certain situation if the particular

14 circumstances arise, there may be factors not included

15 and one party could argue make an expense not just and

16 reasonable or it could be some unusual situation that

17 would make something that's not normally just and

18 reasonable under the circumstances of a particular case.

19 I do think it's important to retain that non exclusivity

20 of that list of factors.  Unless there is any other

21 questions, that's all I have today.

22       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.

23           Ms. Cardoni, you have 15:04.

24       MS. CARDONI:  I just have a couple of quick
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1 points.  I think everyone here is getting really bogged

2 down in the words necessary and duplicative and

3 incremental.  I don't think that's really very important

4 because I think all of the parties agree that the

5 standard is justness and reasonableness.  The draft rule

6 and the proposed order's draft rule do include necessary

7 and duplicative in the language of the Rule.  We just

8 think that's an element of justness and reasonableness.

9 Certainly, you know, is it necessary for a utility to

10 pay for various meals?  Well, maybe not.  Certainly that

11 doesn't advance the litigation in any way.  Is it

12 duplicative if 25 attorneys are all looking at DRs?  I

13 mean, probably not.  Probably it is duplicative.

14 Probably that is not necessary.  It's Staff's belief

15 that what the Rule asks for are the kinds of materials

16 that gives the parties, Staff, the AG, CUB, other

17 interveners the opportunity to ask these kinds of

18 questions about what we are seeing.  That's exactly

19 what's been going on so far.  Now what we will have is a

20 framework for what we receive.  We will put these

21 positions, our positions.  We would note issues we think

22 are not just or reasonable.  Parties would brief those

23 issues.  There would be testimony on it.  And you would

24 have that information for the record to come to your



101

1 conclusion and make a specific finding on the justness

2 and reasonableness of rate case expense.  I don't think

3 the language is necessarily in any way a burden for

4 anyone on the ruling here.  I think it advances the Rule

5 and helps everyone figure out how to work with it.

6           The issue of incremental, there was a lot of

7 discussion about that within the workshops.  And in

8 staff's mind, it just got too complicated.  You know,

9 all of the utilities do rate cases differently.  Some

10 use in-house people.  Some use all outside people.

11 There is traditional rate cases and now there is rate

12 cases -- it's too complicated.  We don't think the Rule

13 requires it because it addresses any kind of rate case

14 that's needed, any kind of rate case that's filed with

15 the Commission.

16           Finally, you know, we all agree that the

17 ratepayers are paying for all of us.  That's not in

18 question at all.  I think it's easier for a ratepayer to

19 understand paying $10 million more for a replaced

20 transmission line than it is paying $10 million for a

21 bunch of lawyers to work on this case.  And that's why

22 it's more important all this information is included in

23 filing.  The parties can all ask questions about it.

24 And we think that's what the draft rule is.
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1       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Thank you.

2           Ms. Hicks?

3       MS. HICKS:  I would like to respond specifically

4 to a point that Ms. Barrett raised and it also actually

5 goes to a question that Chairman Scott asked of

6 Ms. Lusson.  That question was, do we really need the

7 specifics in this Rule?  Can't we just come up with

8 these factors o a case-by-case basis and apply it at

9 that point?  And that really goes to the reason that

10 this Rule making as initiated by 10-0467.  I would say

11 yes, you can.  But the purpose of this Rule is that you

12 would do so consistently.  And as the order of 10-0467

13 articulated the purpose of the rulemaking was to ensure

14 that all parties would be on notice as to what defines

15 that expense that is categorized in the rate case

16 expense.  Also all parties will have the benefit of

17 knowing what is required of them regarding the evidence

18 it must have in order to support attorneys' fees and

19 expert witness fees and like fees such as support staff.

20           In the event that the Commission received an

21 invoice for 500 hours with no detail whatsoever, the

22 Commission should point to this Rule and should say you

23 were on notice that this is the kind of evidence that we

24 needed in order to make our determination that this is
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1 just and reasonable expense.  And it isn't the

2 Commission's duty to go through these 500 hours and

3 determine what portion of that it knows was probably

4 used.  You know, this Rule will say you were on notice.

5 This is the information you were supposed to provide and

6 you didn't do it and we aren't going to spend our time

7 making up for your burden.

8           So that was all that I had to respond to.  Are

9 there any further questions?

10       CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

11           Ms. Lusson, you blew through all your time

12 during the initial portion so that will conclude today's

13 oral argument.

14           On behalf of the Commission I thank the

15 parties for the presentations today.  This meeting is

16 adjourned.  Thank you, everyone.

17                    (Which were all the proceedings had

18                     in the above-entitled cause.)
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